
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




BYLAWS OF 
THE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 


  
ARTICLE 1- NAME 


 
The name of this Organization shall be the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board, 
hereafter referred to as the Board. 
 


ARTICLE 2- PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 
 
This Board is organized for the purposes as specified in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act of 2014 (hereinafter referred to as WIOA) and the Texas Workforce and Economic 
Competitiveness Act, chapter 668, Act of the 73rd Texas Legislature, Regular Session, 1993 
(Texas Senate Bill 642), as amended by House Bill1863, 74th session, Texas Legislature,1995 and 
any successor acts. The mission of the Board is to advance business-driven talent development 
strategies that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a quality workforce. 
 


ARTICLE 3 – MEMBERSHIP 
 


SECTION 1. GENERAL 
 
Board members are public officials appointed by elected officials as the trustees of the workforce 
development system and are entrusted with significant fiduciary and policy responsibilities, 
including oversight of public funds and implementation of state and federal law. 
 
SECTION 2.  BOARD COMPOSITION 
 
The local Board composition shall comply with criteria established by the State of Texas and 
the Chief Elected Officials of the North Central Texas Workforce Development Area. 
 
SECTION 3. SIZE OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
The chief elected officials will appoint no less than 25 Board members and not more than 38 
members. 
 
SECTION 4. DUTIES, CONDUCT, AND EXPECTATIONS  
 
Members of the Board shall comply with the Board’s Governance Policies and all provisions 
stipulated in Federal or State law, rule or guidance applicable to the Board’s operations.   
 
Board members shall provide the Board Chair with a written declaration acknowledging that he/she 
has received the Board Member Code of Conduct and Governance Policies and has read and 
understood the conflict of interest provisions and that the Board member agrees to abide by them.   
The Board shall ensure:  
 
 a)  the performance of any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by 
 law, or by these Bylaws;  
 







 b)  the development of plans, as well as an oversight and evaluation system for all 
 Workforce development programs in the Area; 
 
 c)  the attainment of effective outcomes consistent with statewide goals, objectives, and 
 performance standards approved by the governor; 
 
 d)  the effective administration or the Workforce Investment Innovation and Opportunities 
  Act of 2014 and such other programs as assigned by law; and  
  
 e)  meetings take place at such times and places as required by these Bylaws.   
 
SECTION 5. COMPENSATION 
 
Members shall serve without compensation except that they shall be allowed reasonable 
advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. 
 
SECTION 6. VACANCIES 
 
Vacancies on the Board shall exist (1) on the death, acceptance of the resignation by the Chair or 
removal of any member, and (2) whenever the number of authorized Board members is increased. 
 
Any member may resign upon giving written notice and shall be effective upon acceptance of such 
notice by the Board Chair, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such 
resignation. 
 
Any Board member may be removed from office at any time by the CEO who appointed the Board 
member. The Board Chairman shall provide notice of vacancy to the Lead CEO who shall fill the 
vacancy in the required category in accordance with applicable guidelines. 
 
SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION OF BOARD AND OFFICERS 
 
All contractors shall indemnify the Board and its officers under the laws of this state to the fullest 
extend permissible. 
 
SECTION 8. INSURANCE FOR AGENTS OF THE BOARD 
 
The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf 
of any agent of the Board, including a member, officer, or other agent of the Board, against 
liabilities asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's 
status as such, whether or not the Board would have the power to indemnify the agent against such 
liability under these Bylaws or provisions of law. 
 
SECTION 9.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Members shall comply with all conflict-of-interest provisions applicable to the Board by law, rule, 
or policy. 
 


 







ARTICLE 4 –OFFICERS 
 
 SECTION 1. DESIGNATION OF OFFICERS 
 
The officers of the Board shall be a Chair, the Past Chair, a Vice Chair, and a Secretary. 
 
SECTION 2. ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 
A nominating committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and shall be responsible for 
nominating a slate of officers representing the Board's diverse constituency. In addition, any 
member can nominate a candidate to the slate of nominees. 
 
SECTION 3. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE 
 
The Board shall elect officers for a two-year term. Officers shall not hold this office for more 
than three (3) consecutive terms. 
 
SECTION 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION 
 
Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board. Any 
officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board Chair. Any such resignation 
shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later date specified therein, and, 
unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to 
make it effective. 
 
SECTION 5. VACANCIES 
 
Any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, of any 
officer shall be filled by the Board. In the event of a vacancy in any office other than that of Chair, 
such vacancy may be filled temporarily by Chair appointment until such time as the Board shall 
fill the vacancy. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the Chair, the Vice Chair will assume 
the position of Chair for the remainder of the vacating Chair's term. 
 
SECTION 6. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF CHAIR 
 
The Chair shall be elected from among the private sector members of the Board. The Chair shall 
preside at meetings of the Board. The Chair of the Board shall appoint the Chairperson and 
members of all committees. He or she shall perform all duties incident to his or her office and such 
other duties as may be required by law, by these Bylaws, or which may be prescribed from time 
to time by the Board. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law or by these Bylaws, he or she 
shall, in the name of the Board, execute such contracts, plans, or other instruments which may 
from time to time be authorized by the Board. 
 
SECTION 7. DUTIES OF PAST CHAIR 
 
To ensure the continuity of knowledge and authority, the immediate past Chair of the Board shall 
serve in the position of Past Chair for a period up to two years. The Past Chair shall have other 
powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the Board Chair. 







SECTION 8. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF VICE CHAIR 
 
The Vice Chair shall be elected from among the private sector members of the Board. In the 
absence of the Chair, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice Chair shall 
assume all the duties and responsibilities of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have other powers and 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law, these Bylaws, or by the Board. 
 
SECTION 9. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF SECRETARY 
 
The Secretary may be elected without regard to sector representation.  The Secretary shall be 
responsible for oversight of the keeping of the records of the Board's actions. 
 


ARTICLE 5 – MEETINGS 
 


SECTION 1.  TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS  
 
Meetings of the Board shall be held at least annually and at other times.  Meetings shall be held in 
accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  Meetings shall be held at such a place as is 
designated from time to time. 
 
SECTION 2. ANNUAL MEETING 
 
An annual meeting of the members shall be held in conjunction with the CEOs.  At the annual 
meeting the members shall receive reports on the activities and accomplishments of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3.   SPECIAL MEETINGS 
 
Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Executive Committee, by the Chair, 
or by a majority of the members of the Board. Special meetings may be held at such place as may 
be designated in the call for a meeting. 
 
SECTION 4.  QUORUM 
 
A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Board, and shall be established on the basis of 
membership, excluding vacancies. At the call to order of each meeting, the exact number of 
members required to achieve a quorum shall be established. Except as otherwise provided under 
these Bylaws, or provisions of law, no business shall I be considered by the Board at any meeting 
at which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the Chair shall entertain 
at such meeting is a motion to adjourn. Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one vote. 
Neither alternate representation nor proxy votes are permitted. 
 
SECTION 5.  VOTING 
 
All issues to be voted on shall be decided by a simple majority of those counted as present at the 
meeting in which the vote takes place.  Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the 
Board present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board unless 
these Bylaws, or provisions of law require a greater percentage or different voting rules for 
approval of a specific matter by the Board. 







SECTION 6. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 
 
Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the Board Chair, or, if no such person has been 
so designated or, in his or her absence, by the Vice Chair or, in the absence of each of these persons, 
by a Temporary Chair chosen by a majority of the Board present at the meeting. 
 
SECTION 7.   USE OF TECHONOLOGY TO HOLD MEETINGS 
 
Meetings may be held in person, by video conferencing or by any other means, as long the meeting 
complies with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 


ARTICLE 6- EXECUTIVE COMMITIEE 
 


SECTION 1.  MEMBERSHIP 
 
The officers of the Board, and the Chairs of all standing committees, shall constitute the Executive 
Committee. 
 
SECTION 2. AUTHORITY 
 
The Executive Committee shall have general supervision of the affairs of the Board between busine 
ss meetings and, so far as may be permitted by law and these by-laws, shall exercise all the 
authority of the Board during the intervals between the meetings. 
 
The Committee is subject to the orders of the Board and none of its acts shall conflict with previous 
actions taken by the Board. 
 
By a majority vote of its members, the Board may at any time revoke or modify any or all of the 
Executive Committee authority so delegated. Meetings and action of the Executive Committee 
shall be governed by, notice, and held in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws 
concerning meetings of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3. MEETINGS 
 
The Executive Committee is subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. The Executive Committee 
shall meet as requested by the Chair. 
 


ARTICLE 7- STANDING COMMITTEES 
 


SECTION 1. MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Board may designate and direct the activities of standing committees to provide information 
and to assist the Board in carrying out activities.  Such standing committees shall be chaired by a 
member of the Board, may include other members of the Board and may include other individuals 
appointed by the Board who are not members of the local board and who the local board determines 
have appropriate experience and expertise. 
 
 







SECTION 2. AUTHORITY 
 
Standing committees shall be advisory unless otherwise required by law. The Board retains the 
responsibility for full review and final decision on all matters.  Unless otherwise provided for in 
these Bylaws, the Board Chair, with concurrence of the Executive Committee, has the authority to 
designate, dismiss or modify all committees for the successful operation of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3. MEETINGS 
 
Standing committee shall operate under a written resolution that is approved by the Board.  The 
resolution shall include a description of the purpose, functions and objectives of the committee, 
membership, and meeting schedule and process. All committees shall provide notice, be held and 
have minutes taken in accordance with accepted Board standards. Committee meetings can be held 
in person, via teleconference or video conference. 
 


ARTICLE 8- AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 
 


 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT 
 
These Bylaws can may be amended at a regularly scheduled meeting by a two-thirds vote of Board 
members present and voting, provided that the amendment has been submitted in writing and 
included as an agenda item at the prior regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 
 
SECTION 2. ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 
 
The foregoing Bylaws were adopted by two-thirds of the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board, present and voting at the meeting ________________, 2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Secretary  
 
 








ALL BOARDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES STATUS SUMMARY (YEAR-TO-DATE)


MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


Alamo 
Area


Brazos 
Valley


Cameron
 County


Capital 
Area


Central 
Texas


Coastal 
Bend


Concho 
Valley


Dallas 
County


Deep 
East 
Texas


East 
Texas


Golden 
Crescen


t


Gulf 
Coast


Heart 
of 


Texas


Lower 
Rio 


Grande


Middle 
Rio 


Grande


North 
Central


North 
East 
Texas


North 
Texas


Panhandle Permian
 Basin


Rural 
Capital


South 
Plains


South 
Texas


Southeas
t Texas


Tarrant 
County


Texoma Boarder 
Plex


West 
Central


1 - Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures


#Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks 1


## of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance +P +P +P +P +P+P +P +P +P +P MP +P +P +P +P +P MP +P MP +P +P +P +P +P +P +P +P MP2


2 - Program Participation Measures


#Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined MP -P -P -P -P-P -P -P -P -P -P -P -P -P -P -P MP -P -P -P MP -P -P MP -P MP -P -P4


3 - WIOA Outcome Measures


###Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T Participants MP -P MP MP -P-P +P MP -P -P +P -P MP +P MP -P MP +P MP MP MP MP -P MP MP MP MP -P###


###Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


MP MP MP MP MPMP MP MP MP MP MP MP MP -P -P MP MP MP MP -P +P MP -P MP MP MP MP MP###


###Credential Rate – C&T Participants MP -P +P MP +P-P +P +P +P MP +P -P -P +P +P MP MP +P +P MP +P +P +P +P +P +P +P MP###


##Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult MP MP MP MP MPMP MP MP +P -P +P MP MP MP +P MP +P +P MP MP MP MP -P +P MP +P MP MP10


##Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult MP -P MP +P +PMP MP MP -P MP +P MP MP MP MP MP +P -P MP MP MP MP MP MP +P +P +P +P11


##Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult MP MP MP +P +P+P +P +P MP -P +P -P +P MP +P +P MP -P +P +P +P +P +P MP +P +P +P +P12


##Credential Rate – Adult MP -P MP +P +P-P MP MP +P MP +P -P -P MP MP +P -P +P +P MP +P +P +P +P MP MP MP +P13


####Measurable Skills Gains – Adult MP -P MP +P -P-P -P MP -P -P -P -P -P +P -P -P +P MP -P -P -P -P +P -P -P MP -P -P####


##Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW -P -P MP MP -PMP -P MP -P -P MP MP MP MP MP MP MP -P +P -P MP -P +P MP MP +P +P14


##Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW +P -P MP MP +PMP +P MP MP -P MP MP +P +P +P MP MP -P +P MP MP +P +P MP MP -P MP MP15


##Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW +P +P MP +P +P+P +P MP MP -P -P MP +P +P -P +P MP -P +P -P +P MP +P MP +P +P16


##Credential Rate – DW +P +P +P -P MP-P MP MP -P MP +P MP -P MP +P MP +P +P +P -P MP +P +P +P MP +P MP -P17


####Measurable Skills Gains – DW MP -P +P MP -P-P +P MP -P -P MP -P -P -P +P -P +P -P +P -P MP -P MP -P -P -P +P -P####


##Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth MP MP MP -P MPMP MP MP MP MP -P -P -P MP MP MP +P +P MP -P MP MP MP MP MP -P -P +P18


##Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth +P +P +P +P +P+P +P +P +P MP MP +P +P MP +P +P +P MP +P +P +P +P +P MP +P +P MP +P19


####Measurable Skills Gains – Youth -P -P MP +P -P-P +P -P -P +P MP MP -P -P -P MP -P -P MP -P -P -P MP -P -P -P -P -P####


##Credential Rate – Youth +P +P +P +P MP-P -P +P +P +P +P MP -P MP +P +P +P +P +P +P +P +P +P +P -P20


####Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth MP MP +P +P -PMP +P -P MP +P +P MP MP MP MP +P +P +P +P +P +P +P +P -P -P +P MP +P####


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







Alamo 
Area


Brazos 
Valley


Cameron
 County


Capital 
Area


Central 
Texas


Coastal 
Bend


Concho 
Valley


Dallas 
County


Deep 
East 
Texas


East 
Texas


Golden 
Crescen


t


Gulf 
Coast


Heart 
of 


Texas


Lower 
Rio 


Grande


Middle 
Rio 


Grande


North 
Central


North 
East 
Texas


North 
Texas


Panhandle Permian
 Basin


Rural 
Capital


South 
Plains


South 
Texas


Southeas
t Texas


Tarrant 
County


Texoma Boarder 
Plex


West 
Central


Consolidated Performance Measures Summary


1.) Positive Performance (+P) 6 5 7 10 84 10 5 6 4 8 3 5 6 8 6 9 9 10 6 8 10 11 7 6 9 7 8


2.) Meeting Performance (MP 12 5 12 7 57 6 12 6 7 7 9 7 9 6 10 9 3 7 6 9 5 5 9 9 5 8 5


3.) Negative Performance (-P) 2 10 1 3 79 4 3 8 9 4 8 8 5 5 4 2 7 3 8 3 5 4 4 5 4 5 6


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board












PERFORMANCE MEASURES STATUS SUMMARY 


(YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board's current status is reflected by the highlight. 


Performance Measure


Positive 


Performance 


(+P)


Negative 


Performance 


(-P)


Meeting 


Performance 


(MP)


1 - Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures


Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks1


24 4# of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance2


2 - Program Participation Measures


5 23Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined4


3 - WIOA Outcome Measures


4 15 9Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T Participants6.5


1 23 4Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T Participants7.5


17 7 4Credential Rate – C&T Participants9.5


7 19 2Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult10


8 17 3Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult11


18 7 3Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult12


12 11 5Credential Rate – Adult13



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight







PERFORMANCE MEASURES STATUS SUMMARY 


(YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board's current status is reflected by the highlight. 


Performance Measure


Positive 


Performance 


(+P)


Negative 


Performance 


(-P)


Meeting 


Performance 


(MP)


4 5 19Measurable Skills Gains – Adult13.5


4 14 9Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW14


9 15 4Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW15


14 7 5Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW16


12 10 6Credential Rate – DW17


6 6 16Measurable Skills Gains – DW17.5


3 18 7Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth18


22 6Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth19


3 6 19Measurable Skills Gains – Youth19.5


18 3 4Credential Rate – Youth20


15 9 4Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth21.5



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight



mnichola

Highlight








ALL BOARDS RANKING SUMMARY (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


Alamo 


Area


Brazos 


Valley


Cameron 


County


Capital 


Area


Central 


Texas


Coastal 


Bend


Concho 


Valley


Dallas 


County


Deep 


East 


Texas


East 


Texas


Golden 


Crescent


Gulf 


Coast


Heart 


of 


Texas


Lower 


Rio 


Grande


Middle 


Rio 


Grande


North 


Central


North 


East 


Texas


North 


Texas


Panhandle Permian 


Basin


Rural 


Capital


South 


Plains


South 


Texas


Southeast


 Texas


Tarrant 


County


Texoma Border 


Plex


West 


Central


1 - Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures
Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks


1


# of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance 13 1 9 23 1614 19 7 2 10 27 4 15 24 5 11 27 21 25 20 3 8 17 6 22 18 12 262


Average Group Rank: 13.00 1.00 9.00 23.00 16.00 14.00 19.00 7.00 2.00 10.00 27.00 4.00 15.00 24.00 5.00 11.00 27.00 21.00 25.00 20.00 3.00 8.00 17.00 6.00 22.00 18.00 12.00 26.00


2 - Program Participation Measures
Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined 5 7 9 23 2012 15 10 11 18 24 13 22 21 17 16 2 26 19 25 4 6 28 3 14 1 27 84


Average Group Rank: 5.00 7.00 9.00 23.00 20.00 12.00 15.00 10.00 11.00 18.00 24.00 13.00 22.00 21.00 17.00 16.00 2.00 26.00 19.00 25.00 4.00 6.00 28.00 3.00 14.00 1.00 27.00 8.00


3 - WIOA Outcome Measures
Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T Participants 12 23 9 5 2125 2 19 24 27 1 28 7 4 18 26 10 3 8 14 6 17 20 11 13 15 16 22###


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T Participants 7 22 24 3 1614 15 11 18 13 4 23 20 27 28 2 8 10 12 25 1 19 26 21 5 6 9 17###


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 22 26 5 19 1128 15 10 13 21 3 25 27 12 6 23 24 1 7 18 9 4 2 17 14 8 16 20###


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 25 11 23 8 1210 22 26 3 28 1 19 12 9 2 17 6 4 15 14 18 24 27 7 16 5 21 2010


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 9 26 12 7 511 13 22 27 20 3 17 23 18 16 19 1 28 15 24 14 10 25 21 8 4 2 611


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult 24 23 20 3 17 18 15 22 27 17 26 10 25 16 12 21 28 13 8 11 5 14 19 9 6 4 212


Credential Rate – Adult 16 27 17 9 1025 23 21 6 22 3 24 28 18 15 11 26 2 12 19 7 8 5 1 20 14 13 413


Measurable Skills Gains – Adult 9 14 6 2 2726 10 5 15 28 16 22 13 1 25 23 4 7 10 20 17 10 3 18 21 8 19 24####


Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 24 25 12 16 195 22 17 21 20 9 14 13 11 15 18 6 27 2 22 10 26 1 8 7 4 314


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 7 26 11 14 619 2 12 18 25 13 23 3 9 8 21 10 27 3 15 16 3 1 17 20 28 22 2415


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW 11 10 16 3 1214 1 17 20 26 22 19 5 6 24 9 18 25 4 23 2 21 8 15 13 716


Credential Rate – DW 12 4 11 24 1928 16 15 23 21 2 22 27 20 5 13 3 1 6 25 18 6 6 6 17 6 14 2617


Measurable Skills Gains – DW 11 15 1 7 2628 5 9 21 27 12 13 18 19 2 20 3 22 6 23 8 13 10 25 17 15 4 24####


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 21 7 10 23 1715 19 14 4 9 26 22 24 11 8 5 1 2 16 28 12 20 18 13 6 25 27 318


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 21 2 22 11 911 4 17 13 24 23 20 19 26 4 16 3 28 14 1 8 10 6 25 18 15 27 719


Measurable Skills Gains – Youth 18 15 5 3 2327 1 14 22 2 6 8 20 25 26 4 12 13 9 15 11 21 6 24 10 17 19 28####


Credential Rate – Youth 13 3 7 12 2025 22 8 5 9 16 21 23 19 14 6 15 1 10 10 17 2 4 18 2420


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth 23 17 7 9 2824 4 25 16 15 6 20 22 19 18 14 8 12 1 2 5 3 11 27 26 10 21 13####


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







Alamo 


Area


Brazos 


Valley


Cameron 


County


Capital 


Area


Central 


Texas


Coastal 


Bend


Concho 


Valley


Dallas 


County


Deep 


East 


Texas


East 


Texas


Golden 


Crescent


Gulf 


Coast


Heart 


of 


Texas


Lower 


Rio 


Grande


Middle 


Rio 


Grande


North 


Central


North 


East 


Texas


North 


Texas


Panhandle Permian 


Basin


Rural 


Capital


South 


Plains


South 


Texas


Southeast


 Texas


Tarrant 


County


Texoma Border 


Plex


West 


Central


Average Group Rank: 15.83 16.44 12.11 9.89 15.67 19.00 11.89 15.39 16.17 20.22 9.82 20.06 17.33 15.72 13.88 15.11 9.89 13.00 10.50 15.44 11.33 11.72 12.17 15.00 13.67 12.50 15.28 14.71


Average Rank Per Performance Measure: 15.15 15.20 11.80 11.20 15.90 18.40 12.40 14.70 15.20 19.60 11.47 18.90 17.45 16.40 13.58 14.95 10.35 14.11 11.65 16.15 10.55 11.25 13.20 13.95 14.10 12.17 15.70 14.95


18 19 7 3 22 26 9 15 19 28 5 27 25 24 11 17 1 14 6 23 2 4 10 12 13 8 21 16Overall Board Ranking:
February 2021


Final Release


4 2 7 6 3 1 5Large Board Ranking:
February 2021


Final Release


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board








LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


# of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance 2


UNIQUE 
EMPLOYERS 


SERVED 


Gulf Coast 1276616,100 1 16,100 24,040 30072 +P 12,128 4126.12% 3,972


Dallas 50815,983 1 5,983 9,413 14170 +P 4,827 7117.75% 1,156


North Central 37004,276 1 4,276 6,546 12239 +P 3,515 11115.57% 761


Borderplex 23882,737 1 2,737 4,445 5169 +P 2,269 12114.61% 468


Alamo Area 41004,659 1 4,659 7,191 11339 +P 3,895 13113.63% 764


Tarrant County 28172,971 1 2,971 5,158 7804 +P 2,676 22105.47% 295


Lower Rio Grande 25562,684 1 2,684 4,093 5620 +P 2,428 24105.01% 256


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined 4


AVG 
SERVED 
PER DAY


Alamo Area 9,544973,702 107 9,100 10,093 10,294 MP 9,067 595.35% 33


Dallas 13,5841,269,353 107 11,863 15,606 14,642 -P 12,905 1087.33% -1,042


Gulf Coast 27,7162,534,098 107 23,683 27,695 29,347 -P 26,330 1385.45% -2,647


Tarrant County 7,170653,215 107 6,105 6,971 6,536 -P 6,812 1485.15% -707


North Central 7,025613,484 107 5,733 7,188 6,749 -P 6,674 1681.61% -941


Lower Rio Grande 9,706827,466 107 7,733 10,603 11,244 -P 9,221 2179.67% -1,488


Borderplex 5,929460,466 107 4,303 5,664 6,212 -P 5,633 2772.58% -1,330


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN %


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T Participants 6.5


Lower Rio Grande 65.60%12,899 18,694 69.00% 74.92% 76.00% +P 11,650 4105.18% 1,249


Alamo Area 65.60%8,212 12,533 65.52% 71.44% 71.27% MP 7,811 1299.88% 401


Tarrant County 65.60%5,761 8,806 65.42% 70.79% 70.46% MP 5,488 1399.73% 273


Borderplex 65.60%6,507 9,983 65.18% 68.62% 67.64% MP 6,221 1699.36% 286


Dallas 65.60%9,896 15,799 62.64% 69.97% 70.30% MP 9,846 1995.49% 50


North Central 65.60%6,160 10,173 60.55% 67.14% 67.87% -P 6,340 2692.30% -180


Gulf Coast 65.60%30,858 51,136 60.34% 66.31% 66.74% -P 31,868 2891.98% -1,010


BOARD NUM DEN %


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T Participants 7.5


North Central 81.70%7,929 9,428 84.10% 86.55% 85.85% MP 7,318 2102.94% 611


Tarrant County 81.70%8,538 10,237 83.40% 86.10% 85.38% MP 7,945 5102.08% 593


Alamo Area 81.70%11,694 14,121 82.81% 86.42% 85.58% MP 10,960 7101.36% 734


Borderplex 81.70%6,606 8,031 82.26% 84.03% 84.76% MP 6,233 9100.69% 373


Dallas 81.70%16,813 20,573 81.72% 85.32% 84.86% MP 15,968 11100.02% 845


Gulf Coast 81.70%35,754 45,409 78.74% 83.03% 83.35% MP 35,244 2396.38% 510


Lower Rio Grande 81.70%12,063 15,780 76.44% 82.86% 84.74% -P 12,248 2793.56% -185


BOARD NUM DEN %


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 9.5


Dallas 69.40%344 440 78.18% 79.00% 74.63% +P 290 10112.65% 54


Lower Rio Grande 69.40%151 196 77.04% 81.50% 79.50% +P 129 12111.01% 22


Tarrant County 69.40%118 156 75.64% 77.33% 69.19% +P 103 14108.99% 15


Borderplex 69.40%104 142 73.24% 79.25% 68.40% +P 94 16105.53% 10


Alamo Area 69.40%97 141 68.79% 74.71% 72.01% MP 93 2299.12% 4


North Central 69.40%144 212 67.92% 68.29% 70.33% MP 140 2397.87% 4


Gulf Coast 69.40%910 1,487 61.20% 64.00% 60.82% -P 980 2588.18% -70


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD PARTICIPANTS MEDIAN 
EARNINGS


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult 12


Borderplex $6,400.0053 $9,120.52 $7,379.82 $6,095.59 +P $5,760.00 4142.51% #########


Tarrant County $5,100.00220 $6,424.68 $5,810.18 $5,449.03 +P $4,590.00 9125.97% #########


North Central $5,000.00104 $5,932.33 $5,603.90 $5,232.50 +P $4,500.00 12118.65% #########


Dallas $5,800.00205 $6,675.82 $6,367.00 $6,241.96 +P $5,220.00 15115.10% #########


Alamo Area $5,800.00124 $5,649.77 $6,807.67 $5,931.28 MP $5,220.00 2497.41% $429.77


Lower Rio Grande $6,500.00146 $6,194.62 $7,257.83 $6,646.19 MP $5,850.00 2595.30% $344.62


Gulf Coast $5,000.003,833 $4,127.80 $4,568.00 $4,431.32 -P $4,500.00 2682.56% #########


BOARD PARTICIPANTS MEDIAN 
EARNINGS


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW 16


Lower Rio Grande $7,000.0015 $10,039.85 $6,947.64 $9,829.15 +P $6,300.00 6143.43% #########


North Central $8,100.0093 $9,654.24 $10,342.56 $10,153.86 +P $7,290.00 9119.19% #########


Alamo Area $8,000.0047 $9,357.41 $8,420.05 $7,671.35 +P $7,200.00 11116.97% #########


Borderplex $8,500.0035 $9,852.75 $8,307.26 $6,705.65 +P $7,650.00 13115.91% #########


Tarrant County $8,300.00159 $9,088.03 $9,137.79 $9,124.04 MP $7,470.00 15109.49% #########


Dallas $8,600.00125 $9,219.25 $9,467.90 $8,791.68 MP $7,740.00 17107.20% #########


Gulf Coast $8,000.00325 $8,395.97 $7,931.03 $8,000.75 MP $7,200.00 19104.95% #########


BOARD PARTICIPANTS MEDIAN 
EARNINGS


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP NUM 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth 21.5


North Central $3,200.00106 $3,697.76 $3,782.36 $3,045.86 +P $2,880.00 14115.55% $817.76


Lower Rio Grande $2,800.0092 $2,728.19 $3,142.12 $3,107.58 MP $2,520.00 1997.44% $208.19


Gulf Coast $2,900.00581 $2,813.17 $3,214.31 $3,291.16 MP $2,610.00 2097.01% $203.17


Borderplex $2,700.0086 $2,613.40 $2,488.45 $3,770.00 MP $2,430.00 2196.79% $183.40


Alamo Area $3,100.00139 $2,855.21 $3,429.00 $2,898.00 MP $2,790.00 2392.10% $65.21


Dallas $2,900.00257 $2,452.85 $3,109.25 $3,272.40 -P $2,610.00 2584.58% #########


Tarrant County $3,300.00148 $2,417.08 $3,329.14 $2,954.46 -P $2,970.00 2673.24% #########


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 10


%


Lower Rio Grande 71.20%146 200 73.00% 73.60% 74.70% MP 128 9102.53% 18


Tarrant County 69.70%220 316 69.60% 74.70% 75.40% MP 198 1699.86% 22


North Central 68.40%104 153 68.00% 72.30% 76.70% MP 94 1799.42% 10


Gulf Coast 69.10%3,833 5,591 68.60% 74.00% 74.10% MP 3,477 1999.28% 356


Borderplex 70.00%53 78 68.00% 75.10% 64.20% MP 49 2197.14% 4


Alamo Area 75.50%124 177 70.10% 78.70% 72.00% MP 120 2592.85% 4


Dallas 71.20%205 317 64.70% 72.10% 72.10% MP 203 2690.87% 2


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 11


%


Borderplex 68.30%104 126 82.50% 68.20% 66.30% +P 77 2120.79% 27


Tarrant County 68.30%198 263 75.30% 73.10% 75.70% +P 162 8110.25% 36


Alamo Area 70.00%166 216 76.90% 73.30% 72.40% MP 136 9109.86% 30


Gulf Coast 68.30%3,923 5,454 71.90% 72.40% 73.80% MP 3,353 17105.27% 570


Lower Rio Grande 69.90%114 156 73.10% 73.60% 75.20% MP 98 18104.58% 16


North Central 68.30%122 172 70.90% 67.60% 73.80% MP 106 19103.81% 16


Dallas 69.30%175 256 68.40% 71.80% 69.20% MP 160 2298.70% 15


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Credential Rate – Adult 13


%


North Central 65.40%58 80 72.50% 67.90% 75.60% +P 47 11110.86% 11


Borderplex 72.10%66 84 78.60% 78.10% 74.20% MP 55 13109.02% 11


Alamo Area 76.10%39 48 81.30% 81.10% 77.90% MP 33 16106.83% 6


Lower Rio Grande 82.70%104 123 84.60% 90.40% 83.10% MP 92 18102.30% 12


Tarrant County 72.50%40 55 72.70% 77.70% 76.40% MP 36 20100.28% 4


Dallas 75.30%135 187 72.20% 81.00% 63.50% MP 127 2195.88% 8


Gulf Coast 65.40%620 1,071 57.90% 63.20% 61.90% -P 630 2488.53% -10


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Measurable Skills Gains – Adult 13.5


%


Lower Rio Grande 58.00%156 196 79.60% +P 102 1137.24% 54


Dallas 58.00%166 278 59.70% MP 145 5102.93% 21


Alamo Area 58.00%80 152 52.60% MP 79 990.69% 1


Borderplex 58.00%51 134 38.10% -P 70 1965.69% -19


Tarrant County 58.00%42 113 37.20% -P 59 2164.14% -17


Gulf Coast 58.00%589 1,601 36.80% -P 836 2263.45% -247


North Central 58.00%75 207 36.20% -P 108 2362.41% -33


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 14


%


Borderplex 73.50%35 43 81.40% 72.20% 71.10% +P 28 4110.75% 7


Tarrant County 73.50%159 208 76.40% 75.10% 81.50% MP 138 7103.95% 21


Lower Rio Grande 79.10%15 19 79.00% 80.90% 83.00% MP 14 1199.87% 1


Gulf Coast 73.50%325 465 69.90% 69.30% 66.90% MP 308 1495.10% 17


Dallas 79.50%125 171 73.10% 83.60% 84.50% MP 122 1791.95% 3


North Central 75.30%93 135 68.90% 77.20% 79.70% MP 91 1891.50% 2


Alamo Area 83.60%47 70 67.10% 87.50% 84.20% -P 53 2480.26% -6


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 15


%


Alamo Area 79.50%73 82 89.00% 82.80% 82.50% +P 59 7111.95% 14


Lower Rio Grande 81.30%26 29 89.70% 79.70% 88.90% +P 21 9110.33% 5


Dallas 78.50%176 210 83.80% 82.70% 84.50% MP 148 12106.75% 28


Tarrant County 77.30%201 267 75.30% 80.50% 78.10% MP 186 2097.41% 15


North Central 79.20%112 146 76.70% 80.80% 76.10% MP 104 2196.84% 8


Borderplex 74.90%29 40 72.50% 77.20% 66.10% MP 27 2296.80% 2


Gulf Coast 74.90%716 995 72.00% 68.40% 81.10% MP 671 2396.13% 45


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Credential Rate – DW 17


%


Alamo Area 73.70%22 27 81.50% 75.70% 80.30% +P 18 12110.58% 4


North Central 71.20%62 81 76.50% 73.20% 76.90% MP 52 13107.44% 10


Borderplex 76.40%13 16 81.30% 78.40% 76.90% MP 11 14106.41% 2


Dallas 73.50%115 147 78.20% 75.90% 79.50% MP 97 15106.39% 18


Tarrant County 76.20%60 77 77.90% 78.20% 86.00% MP 53 17102.23% 7


Lower Rio Grande 85.30%21 26 80.80% 87.30% 93.30% MP 20 2094.72% 1


Gulf Coast 70.00%219 345 63.50% 59.50% 65.40% MP 217 2290.71% 2


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Measurable Skills Gains – DW 17.5


%


Borderplex 58.00%23 34 67.70% +P 18 4116.72% 5


Dallas 58.00%137 244 56.20% MP 127 996.90% 10


Alamo Area 58.00%104 194 53.60% MP 101 1192.41% 3


Gulf Coast 58.00%488 977 50.00% -P 510 1386.21% -22


Tarrant County 58.00%72 157 45.90% -P 82 1779.14% -10


Lower Rio Grande 58.00%57 135 42.20% -P 70 1972.76% -13


North Central 58.00%105 258 40.70% -P 135 2070.17% -30


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







LARGE BOARDS PERFORMANCE COMPARISON REPORT (YEAR-TO-DATE)
MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 18


%


North Central 66.40%113 162 69.80% 76.00% 77.60% MP 97 5105.12% 16


Tarrant County 65.20%151 223 67.70% 69.20% 70.70% MP 131 6103.83% 20


Lower Rio Grande 66.00%98 152 64.50% 68.60% 70.40% MP 90 1197.73% 8


Dallas 69.50%262 391 67.00% 70.40% 72.50% MP 245 1496.40% 17


Alamo Area 67.80%143 233 61.40% 70.60% 68.80% MP 142 2190.56% 1


Gulf Coast 65.20%599 1,023 58.60% 68.00% 73.20% -P 600 2289.88% -1


Borderplex 65.20%90 174 51.70% 60.10% 64.20% -P 102 2779.29% -12


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 19


%


North Central 70.80%117 142 82.40% 83.90% 81.10% +P 90 16116.38% 27


Dallas 65.80%240 317 75.70% 79.70% 78.30% +P 188 17115.05% 52


Tarrant County 65.50%115 153 75.20% 79.70% 78.20% +P 90 18114.81% 25


Gulf Coast 63.30%409 567 72.10% 75.60% 82.80% +P 323 20113.90% 86


Alamo Area 66.30%171 228 75.00% 76.30% 74.70% +P 136 21113.12% 35


Lower Rio Grande 67.00%131 191 68.60% 76.80% 80.10% MP 115 26102.39% 16


Borderplex 63.30%51 82 62.20% 72.90% 67.60% MP 47 2798.26% 4


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Measurable Skills Gains – Youth 19.5


%


North Central 50.00%32 63 50.80% MP 28 4101.60% 4


Gulf Coast 50.00%176 366 48.10% MP 165 896.20% 11


Tarrant County 50.00%20 45 44.40% -P 20 1088.80% 0


Dallas 50.00%53 134 39.60% -P 60 1479.20% -7


Alamo Area 50.00%58 168 34.50% -P 76 1869.00% -18


Borderplex 50.00%21 61 34.40% -P 27 1968.80% -6


Lower Rio Grande 50.00%7 51 13.70% -P 23 2527.40% -16


BOARD NUM DEN


%  of 
TARGET


CURRENT 
TARGET


2 YRS 
PRIOR


MP SERVED 
TARGET GAP RANK


PRIOR 
YEAR 
END


STATUS


Credential Rate – Youth 20


%


Tarrant County 28.60%20 35 57.10% 46.50% 33.70% +P 9 4199.65% 11


Dallas 51.80%83 102 81.40% 60.10% 43.30% +P 48 8157.14% 35


Alamo Area 28.50%11 30 36.70% 40.70% 39.10% +P 8 13128.77% 3


Gulf Coast 34.10%63 152 41.50% 46.10% 49.30% +P 47 16121.70% 16


North Central 43.80%16 34 47.10% 51.20% 24.50% MP 13 19107.53% 3


Lower Rio Grande 28.50%5 25 20.00% 58.80% 50.00% -P 6 2370.18% -1


Borderplex 56.70%11 28 39.30% 72.90% 44.40% -P 14 2469.31% -3


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board





		rpt_LargeBoardsPerformanceComparisonSummaryReport-Pages_1-3

		rpt_LargeBoardsPerformanceComparisonSummaryReport-CC-Page_4

		rpt_LargeBoardsPerformanceComparisonSummaryReport-EWA-Page_4

		rpt_LargeBoardsPerformanceComparisonSummaryReport_MedianEarnings3

		rpt_LargeBoardsPerformanceComparisonSummaryReport-WIOA-Page_2










BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


6 10 4 80.00%


% +P & MPWith Positive 
Performance (+P):


Meeting 
Performance (MP):


With Negative 
Performance  (-P):


Contracted Measures


Status Summary


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


WIOA Outcome Measures


(DOL)
Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 7/19 12/1968.40%MP 99.42% 68.40% 68.00% 72.30% 76.70% 75.70% 60.80%


153
104DOL-C


(DOL)
Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 1/19 6/1968.30%MP 103.81% 68.30% 70.90% 67.60% 73.80% 80.00% 63.90%


172
122DOL-C


(DOL)
Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult 7/19 12/19$5,000.00+P 118.65% $5,000.00 $5,932.33 $5,603.90 $5,232.50 $6,816.52 $5,299.81


104
n/aDOL-C


(DOL)
Credential Rate – Adult 1/19 6/1965.40%+P 110.86% 65.40% 72.50% 67.90% 75.60% 64.90% 79.10%


80
58DOL-C


(DOL)
Measurable Skills Gains - Adult 7/20 2/2158.00%-P 62.41% 58.00% 36.20% n/a n/a 43.80% 34.40% 7.10%


207
75DOL-C


(DOL)
Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 7/19 12/1975.30%MP 91.50% 75.30% 68.90% 77.20% 79.70% 64.20% 73.50%


135
93DOL-C


(DOL)
Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 1/19 6/1979.20%MP 96.84% 79.20% 76.70% 80.80% 76.10% 82.70% 69.20%


146
112DOL-C


(DOL)
Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW 7/19 12/19$8,100.00+P 119.19% $8,100.00 $9,654.24 $10,342.56 $10,153.86 $9,721.32 $9,508.59


93
n/aDOL-C


(DOL)
Credential Rate – DW 1/19 6/1971.20%MP 107.44% 71.20% 76.50% 73.20% 76.90% 76.60% 76.50%


81
62DOL-C


(DOL)
Measurable Skills Gains - DW 7/20 2/2158.00%-P 70.17% 58.00% 40.70% n/a n/a 48.60% 37.40% 14.20%


258
105DOL-C


(DOL)
Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 7/19 12/1966.40%MP 105.12% 66.40% 69.80% 76.00% 77.60% 69.10% 70.80%


162
113DOL-C


(DOL)
Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 1/19 6/1970.80%+P 116.38% 70.80% 82.40% 83.90% 81.10% 82.80% 82.10%


142
117DOL-C


(DOL)
Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth 7/19 12/19$3,200.00+P 115.55% $3,200.00 $3,697.76 $3,782.36 $3,045.86 $3,609.51 $3,968.40


106
n/aTWC


(DOL)
Credential Rate – Youth 1/19 6/1943.80%MP 107.53% 43.80% 47.10% 51.20% 24.50% 60.00% 36.80%


34
16DOL-C


(DOL)
Measurable Skills Gains - Youth 7/20 2/2150.00%MP 101.60% 50.00% 50.80% n/a n/a 56.90% 50.00% 5.60%


63
32DOL-C


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


7/19 12/1965.60%-P 92.30% 65.60% 60.55% 67.14% 67.87% 66.09% 55.19%
10,173
6,160LBB-K


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


1/19 6/1981.70%MP 102.94% 81.70% 84.10% 86.55% 85.85% 87.60% 80.63%
9,428
7,929LBB-K


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 1/19 6/1969.40%MP 97.87% 69.40% 67.92% 68.29% 70.33% 68.52% 67.31%
212
144LBB-K


Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures


Page 1 of 2Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 







BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures
Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks 7/20 11/20


1,2
n/an/a n/a 41.90% n/a 58.27% 55.76% n/a n/a


n/a
n/aTWC


# of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance 10/20 2/213,700+P 115.57% 6,806 4,276 6,546 12,239 3,241 2,862
-----
-----TWC


During the period in which work search was suspended, this measure was no longer meaningfully reportable. However, with the reimplementation of work search, we anticipate the measure to become reportable again later 
this year.


1.


The Commission adopted BCY21 targets on Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks that will apply to claimants whose 10 Week Start Date is Jan 1, 2021 to June 30, 2021.  Due to lag, the first month of data will be available 
in the April MPR.


2.


Program Participation Measures
Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined 10/20 2/21


3
7,025-P 81.61% 7,025 5,733 7,188 6,749 5,775 5,666


107
613,484TWC


TWC took a number of actions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on child care providers and families and to ensure the availability of child care for working parents in Texas.  Some of these actions resulted in a increased costs 
of care. In addition, many families suspended care during the summer.  The system began ramping enrollment back up but has not yet reached the level of enrollment expected because it takes several months to accomplish 
this.


3.


Page 2 of 2Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 








Alamo WDB


PERFORMANCE MEASURES  QUARTILE PLACEMENT SUMMARY 


(YEAR-TO-DATE)


Greater Dallas 


WDB


Gulf Coast WDB Lower Rio 


Grande Valley 


WDB


North Central 


Texas WDB


Tarrant County 


WDB


Borderplex WDB
PERFORMANCE MEASURE QUARTILE


MONTH: February 2021 RELEASE: Final Release


1st Quartile 3 2 1 443 3


2nd Quartile 8 8 4 565 6


3rd Quartile 4 7 6 686 8


4th Quartile 5 3 9 526 3


20 20 20 20 20 20 20TOTAL PERFORMANCE MEASURES:








WIOA MEASURES REPORT


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


Non-Contracted Measures


All Measures


4 9 1 92.86%
0 0 0 0.00%
4 9 1 92.86%


% +P & MPWith Positive 
Performance (+P):


Meeting 
Performance (MP):


With Negative 
Performance  (-P):


Contracted Measures


Status Summary


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Credential Rate
C&T Participants 1/19 6/1969.40%MP 97.87% 69.40% 67.92% 68.29% 70.33% 68.52% 67.31%


212
144LBB-K


(DOL)
Adult 1/19 6/1965.40%+P 110.86% 65.40% 72.50% 67.90% 75.60% 64.90% 79.10%


80
58DOL-C


(DOL)
DW 1/19 6/1971.20%MP 107.44% 71.20% 76.50% 73.20% 76.90% 76.60% 76.50%


81
62DOL-C


(DOL)
Youth 1/19 6/1943.80%MP 107.53% 43.80% 47.10% 51.20% 24.50% 60.00% 36.80%


34
16DOL-C


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit
Adult/DW 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 71.24% 76.78% 78.46% 74.34% 68.14%


226
161


Employment Services 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 61.51% 67.73% 68.50% 67.79% 55.78%
9,377
5,768


ES Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 63.57% 65.86% 65.04% 66.52% 60.67%
947
602


DVOP/LVER 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 64.60% 64.40% 64.85% 68.89% 60.43%
274
177


Choices 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 51.64% 62.94% 64.79% 56.11% 46.45%
335
173


SNAP E&T 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 42.71% 52.95% 51.44% 48.07% 37.41%
1,091
466


ES Disabled Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 60.71% 76.19% 60.15% 71.43% 50.00%
28
17


At Risk 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 58.97% 66.44% 67.18% 65.20% 53.34%
3,449
2,034


C&T Participants 7/19 12/1965.60%-P 92.30% 65.60% 60.55% 67.14% 67.87% 66.09% 55.19%
10,173
6,160LBB-K


Total Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 63.55% 65.81% 65.04% 66.53% 60.57%
974
619


Claimants 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 63.61% 69.45% 69.90% 69.98% 57.37%
6,101
3,881


NCP 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 53.57% 58.46% 50.00% 66.67% 38.46%
28
15


Choices Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 56.10% 65.03% 66.61% 63.78% 47.90%
246
138


Page 1 of 4Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 







WIOA MEASURES REPORT


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit
NCP Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 53.85% 58.06% 48.48% 66.67% 36.36%


26
14


SNAP E&T Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 44.14% 56.18% 54.93% 50.73% 38.42%
734
324


(DOL)
Youth 7/19 12/1966.40%MP 105.12% 66.40% 69.80% 76.00% 77.60% 69.10% 70.80%


162
113DOL-C


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit
Adult/DW 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 83.25% 86.83% 84.53% 88.30% 78.64%


197
164


Employment Services 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 84.65% 86.90% 86.19% 88.03% 81.29%
8,992
7,612


ES Veterans 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 84.41% 85.65% 85.37% 87.83% 81.11%
853
720


DVOP/LVER 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 85.39% 85.37% 85.08% 90.24% 79.17%
219
187


Choices 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 75.59% 79.02% 81.48% 82.26% 66.29%
213
161


SNAP E&T 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 64.27% 73.98% 73.22% 69.14% 60.30%
361
232


ES Disabled Veterans 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 73.33% 89.04% 85.12% 77.78% 66.67%
15
11


At Risk 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 79.42% 83.64% 82.66% 83.66% 75.12%
2,517
1,999


C&T Participants 1/19 6/1981.70%MP 102.94% 81.70% 84.10% 86.55% 85.85% 87.60% 80.63%
9,428
7,929LBB-K


Total Veterans 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 84.28% 85.62% 85.34% 87.68% 81.04%
865
729


Claimants 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 86.86% 88.53% 88.11% 90.14% 83.65%
6,308
5,479


NCP 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 70.59% 86.67% 68.42% 71.43% 70.00%
17
12


Choices Excluding Noncompliant 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 74.44% 79.22% 81.82% 80.95% 65.33%
180
134


NCP Excluding Noncompliant 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 70.59% 88.46% 76.47% 71.43% 70.00%
17
12


SNAP E&T Excluding Noncompliant 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 66.24% 75.59% 74.73% 74.44% 61.11%
234
155


Youth 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 84.82% 81.87% 76.68% 86.27% 83.61%
112
95


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit


Page 2 of 4Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 







WIOA MEASURES REPORT


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit


(DOL)
Youth 1/19 6/1970.80%+P 116.38% 70.80% 82.40% 83.90% 81.10% 82.80% 82.10%


142
117DOL-C


Employed Q2 Post Exit


(DOL)
Adult 7/19 12/1968.40%MP 99.42% 68.40% 68.00% 72.30% 76.70% 75.70% 60.80%


153
104DOL-C


(DOL)
DW 7/19 12/1975.30%MP 91.50% 75.30% 68.90% 77.20% 79.70% 64.20% 73.50%


135
93DOL-C


Employment Services 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 61.46% 67.68% 68.44% 67.72% 55.74%
9,377
5,763DOL-C


ES Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 63.57% 65.82% 64.95% 66.52% 60.67%
947
602DOL-C


DVOP/LVER 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 64.60% 64.26% 64.77% 68.89% 60.43%
274
177


ES Disabled Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- 60.71% 76.19% 60.15% 71.43% 50.00%
28
17


Employed Q4 Post Exit


(DOL)
Adult 1/19 6/1968.30%MP 103.81% 68.30% 70.90% 67.60% 73.80% 80.00% 63.90%


172
122DOL-C


(DOL)
DW 1/19 6/1979.20%MP 96.84% 79.20% 76.70% 80.80% 76.10% 82.70% 69.20%


146
112DOL-C


Employment Services 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 66.70% 70.02% 69.31% 69.21% 64.16%
13,102
8,739DOL-C


ES Veterans 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 64.25% 66.25% 65.99% 65.46% 63.06%
1,284
825DOL-C


DVOP/LVER 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 64.56% 66.51% 64.87% 68.48% 59.73%
333
215


ES Disabled Veterans 1/19 6/19-------- ----- ----- 65.00% 68.52% 62.98% 75.00% 50.00%
20
13


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit


(DOL)
Adult 7/19 12/19$5,000.00+P 118.65% $5,000.00 $5,932.33 $5,603.90 $5,232.50 $6,816.52 $5,299.81


104
n/aDOL-C


(DOL)
DW 7/19 12/19$8,100.00+P 119.19% $8,100.00 $9,654.24 $10,342.56 $10,153.86 $9,721.32 $9,508.59


93
n/aDOL-C


Adult/DW 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $7,941.68 $8,454.55 $7,404.15 $8,024.55 $7,877.42
158
n/a


Employment Services 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $7,158.06 $7,340.04 $6,832.50 $6,987.34 $7,327.28
5,652
n/aDOL-C


ES Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $8,579.50 $8,847.20 $8,425.06 $8,618.91 $8,579.50
589
n/aDOL-C


Page 3 of 4Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 







WIOA MEASURES REPORT


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: FEBRUARY 2021 REPORT
Year-to-Date Performance Periods* As Originally Published 4/6/2021


FINAL RELEASE


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit
DVOP/LVER 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $9,185.73 $8,758.52 $8,777.54 $9,539.98 $8,580.00


176
n/a


Choices 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $4,143.42 $3,912.49 $3,681.19 $4,596.98 $3,440.68
168
n/a


SNAP E&T 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $4,076.40 $3,825.49 $3,483.68 $4,130.83 $3,908.24
458
n/a


ES Disabled Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $6,719.15 $9,807.13 $9,072.61 $6,593.30 $10,224.69
17
n/a


At Risk 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $4,924.51 $5,184.18 $4,946.79 $4,761.25 $5,199.50
1,908
n/a


C&T Participants 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $6,813.42 $7,077.40 $6,582.99 $6,647.72 $7,035.34
5,804
n/a


Total Veterans 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $8,310.96 $8,836.56 $8,388.00 $8,310.96 $8,428.73
607
n/a


Claimants 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $8,373.44 $8,486.25 $8,030.64 $8,320.00 $8,465.60
3,658
n/a


NCP 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $4,810.76 $5,030.83 $5,245.96 $3,826.63 $7,285.20
14
n/a


Choices Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $4,533.10 $4,041.06 $3,750.69 $5,072.24 $3,851.59
133
n/a


NCP Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $5,794.88 $5,030.83 $6,091.33 $3,826.63 $8,073.47
13
n/a


SNAP E&T Excluding Noncompliant 7/19 12/19-------- ----- ----- $3,902.98 $3,991.44 $3,484.17 $3,904.20 $3,902.98
320
n/a


Participants Served
Youth 10/20 2/21-------- ----- ----- 91 223 359 77 50


-----
-----


Page 4 of 4Operational Insight - MPR 4.0
Note: In some cases historic data not available at time of original publication (such as when a new measure is created) has been added to the MPR retroactively to allow trend analysis. 








 


 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we invite all attendees to advise us of any special accommodations due to disability. The 
meeting place is accessible to persons with disabilities. If assistance is needed to participate, please call the office of the Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas at (817) 695-9184. Please submit your request as far as possible in advance of the meeting you wish to attend. Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas Board may discuss, deliberate, and take all appropriate action on any matter listed on this agenda and may convene 
into closed executive session in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


 


 
 
 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 


 
Meeting Agenda 


May 25, 2021 
9:30 a.m.- Noon 


Meeting Videoconference: https://zoom.us/j/4235880229 
 


The North Central Texas Workforce Board meeting will be conducted as a telephonic/audio 
meeting. Members of the public wishing to participate may do so by dialing toll free 1-855-965-
2480 and entering access ID # 423 588 0229 when prompted. Alternatively, the meeting will be 
recorded and later posted on the website at https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket.  


Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chair 
 
1) Public Comment 


At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may 
comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your 
name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximum 
three (3) minutes is permitted per speaker. At the conclusion of this opportunity, the public 
telephone line will be muted for the duration of the meeting. 


 
2) Declare Conflicts of Interest 
 
3) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 


a) Approval of the Minutes from the February 24, 2021 Meeting 
b) Development and Maintenance of the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and 


In-Demand Industries Policy Revision 
c) Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified Spouses, and Foster Youth Policy Revision 
d) WIOA Adult-Service Priority for Individualized Career and Training Services Policy 


Revision 
e) Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 


Funding for Training Programs Policy Revision 
f) Code of Conduct Policy Revision 


 
4) Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Committee Updates 
i) Strategic Leadership Committee – Kenny Weldon 


(1) Strategic Plan Update 
(2) Local Tri-Agency Effort 
(3) Website Update 


ii) Workforce Development Committee – Jason Gomez 
(1) iWork Update – Danielle Davis 
(2) Child Care Update – Kelley Fontenot 


iii) Oversight & Accountability Committee – Carlton Tidwell 



https://zoom.us/j/4235880229

https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket





 


WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 
 PAGE 2 
 
 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board of Directors Meeting 


(1) Performance Update – Michael Nicholas 
(2) Financial Update – Randy Richardson 


iv) Executive Committee – Roger Harris 
(1) North Central Texas Workforce Development Board Bylaws – Carvan Adkins 


 
5) Executive Director’s Report 


a) Return to Office Plans 
b) Child Care Update 
c) Unemployment Insurance Update 
d) Cybersecurity Update 
e) Facilities Update  
f) NAWB Forum 2021 


 
6) Announcement of Executive Session 


a) As authorized by Section 551.071 to consult with the Board’s attorney for legal advice 
on any matter listed on the agenda, pending or contemplated litigation, settlement 
offers, or any matter in which the duty of the Board’s attorney to the Board under 
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflict with the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


b) As authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the North Central 
Texas Workforce Board reserves the right to adjourn into closed Executive Session at 
any time during the course of this meeting to deliberate the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee 
or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. – Executive Director 
Position. 


 
7) Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 
8) Other Business 
 
9) Adjourn 





		NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

		Meeting Agenda

		May 25, 2021

		1) Public Comment

		At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maxim...








STATEMENT OF GRANT EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
Contract to Date


# Funding Source Budget
% of FY  


BUDGET Total Expend. % Expended TWC Target % Difference


FY 2021 Grants


1 CHILD CARE 61,042,981 76.22% 19,780,185 32.40% 47.26% (14.85)%
2 WIOA 9,883,811 12.34% 4,964,825 50.23% 59.96% (9.73)%
3 SNAP 1,137,719 1.42% 414,656 36.45% 45.00% (8.55)%
4 TANF 3,526,212 4.40% 1,117,771 31.70% 45.00% (13.30)%
5 RESOURCE ADMINISTRATION GRANTS 799,401 1.00% 434,871 54.40% 45.22% 9.18%
6 TAA 540,631 0.68% 118,158 21.86% 45.00% (23.14)%
7 VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 1,820,471 2.27% 172,958 9.50% 35.89% (26.39)%
8 OTHER 1,331,749 1.66% 577,845 43.39% 46.13% (2.74)%


Total FY 2021 Grants 80,082,975 100.00% 27,581,269 34.44% 49.08% (14.63)%


FY 2020 Grants


9 CHILD CARE 73,224,530 79.99% 65,103,544 88.91% 100.00% (11.09)%
10 WIOA 11,807,703 12.90% 11,693,196 99.03% 99.24% (0.21)%
11 TANF 3,383,113 3.70% 3,059,398 90.43% 100.00% (9.57)%
12 RESOURCE ADMINISTARTION GRANTS 1,540,825 1.68% 1,128,904 73.27% 100.00% (26.73)%
13 TAA 414,631 0.45% 356,124 85.89% 100.00% (14.11)%
14 OTHER 1,175,291 1.28% 1,050,112 89.35% 97.25% (7.90)%


Total FY 2020 Grants 91,546,093 100.00% 82,391,279 90.00% 99.87% (9.87)%


FY 2019 Grants


15 OTHER 122,815 100.00% 119,432 97.25% 93.73% 3.51%


Total FY 2019 Grants 122,815 100.00% 119,432 97.25% 93.73% 3.51%
TOTALS 171,751,883 100.00% 110,091,979 64.10% 76.18% (12.08)%


Child Care Local Match


25,214 819822.00%
7,879 1692197.00%
9,004 3415926.00%


117,776 6306.00% ##
0y


WIA expenditures by ##
#VALUE! WNi's child care ##


majority  of its ABAWD 
The Board received an 


The Board received this 


#VALUE! 5934251.00% ##


March 31, 2021


6,060,492 29,105,532


9,682,285 41,081,143


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


BOARD BUD. $15,742,777
TARGET 49.4%


CONT. BUD. $70,186,674
TARGET 51.2%


March
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


Remaining
Balance


Actual
Expenditures


0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept


Board Exp. Summary


Board


Board Target


0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept


Contractor Exp. Summary


Contractor
Expenditures


Cont. Target


1







Item No. Funding Source
Beginning 
Date Ending Date Budget % of Total FY  Budget Total Expend. Balance % Expended TWC Target % Difference


Fiscal Year 2021


1 CHILD CARE DIRECT CARE 10/01/20 10/31/21 45,871,650 57.28% 14,680,563 31,191,087 32.00% 45.00% (13.00)%
2 CHILD CARE DIRECT CARE=COVID-19 10/01/20 07/31/21 5,559,774 6.94% 2,255,732 3,304,042 40.57% 59.74% (19.16)%
3 CHILD CARE LOCAL MATCH 10/01/20 12/31/21 5,543,370 6.92% 0 5,543,370 0.00% 45.00% (45.00)%
4 CHILDCARE QUALITY 10/01/20 10/31/21 1,543,384 1.93% 525,336 1,018,048 34.04% 45.82% (11.78)%
5 CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION SERVICE 10/01/20 11/30/21 260,812 0.33% 54,563 206,249 20.92% 42.59% (21.67)%
6 CHILDCARE PRS 09/01/20 12/31/21 2,263,991 2.83% 2,263,991 0 100.00% 100.00% (0.00)%
7 WIOA YOUTH 07/01/20 06/30/22 2,719,642 3.40% 1,207,810 1,511,832 44.41% 60.00% (15.59)%
8 WIOA ADULT 07/01/20 06/30/22 2,468,068 3.08% 1,532,394 935,674 62.09% 60.00% 2.09%
9 WIOA DISLOCATED 07/01/20 06/30/22 4,640,327 5.79% 2,188,657 2,451,670 47.17% 60.00% (12.83)%


10 RAPID RESPONSE 07/01/20 06/30/21 55,774 0.07% 35,964 19,810 64.48% 75.00% (10.52)%
11 SNAP 10/01/20 09/30/21 1,137,719 1.42% 414,656 723,063 36.45% 45.00% (8.55)%
12 TANF/CHOICE 10/01/20 10/31/21 3,526,212 4.40% 1,117,771 2,408,441 31.70% 45.00% (13.30)%
13 TWC RAG ISAMS 10/01/20 09/30/21 36,689 0.05% 14,761 21,928 40.23% 49.73% (9.49)%
14 EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 10/01/20 12/31/21 762,712 0.95% 420,109 342,603 55.08% 45.00% 10.08%
15 TRADE ACT SERVICES 10/01/20 12/31/21 540,631 0.68% 118,158 422,473 21.86% 45.00% (23.14)%
16 VETERAN RESOURCE 10/01/20 09/30/21 142,583 0.18% 59,629 82,954 41.82% 49.73% (7.90)%
17 NON CUSTODIAL PARENT 09/01/20 09/30/21 291,552 0.36% 122,452 169,100 42.00% 53.55% (11.55)%
18 WORKFORCE COMMISSION INITIATIVES 10/01/20 12/31/21 45,376 0.06% 12,527 32,849 27.61% 39.69% (12.09)%
19 REEMPLOYMNET SERVICES AND ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT 10/01/20 12/31/21 732,238 0.91% 257,417 474,821 35.15% 45.00% (9.85)%
20 INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT SERVICES CONTRACT 09/01/20 08/31/21 573,971 0.72% 170,519 403,452 29.71% 57.97% (28.26)%
21 STUDENT HIREABILITY NAVIGATOR PROGRAM 09/01/20 08/31/21 200,000 0.25% 87,747 112,253 43.87% 57.97% (14.09)%
21 SEAL 02/01/21 01/31/22 934,000 1.17% 2,439 931,561 0.26% 15.93% (15.67)%
22 WAGES SERVICES FOR PAID WORK EXPERIENCE 10/01/20 09/30/21 112,500 0.14% 4,565 107,935 4.06% 49.73% (45.67)%
23 APPRENTICESHIP TEXAS EXPANSION 10/01/20 03/31/22 120,000 0.15% 33,507 86,493 27.92% 33.15% (5.23)%


Totals 80,082,975 100.00% 27,581,269 52,501,706 34.44% 49.08% (14.63)%


Item No. Funding Source
Beginning 


Date Ending Date Budget % of Total FY  Budget Total Expend. Balance % Expended TWC Target % Difference


Fiscal Year 2020


24 CHILD CARE DIRECT CARE 10/01/19 12/31/20 45,514,777 49.72% 45,514,777 0 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%
25 CHILD CARE DIRECT CARE=COVID-19 10/01/19 12/31/20 20,123,563 21.98% 12,049,813 8,073,750 59.88% 100.00% (40.12)%
26 CHILD CARE LOCAL MATCH 10/01/19 12/31/20 5,628,806 6.15% 5,628,806 0 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%
27 CHILDCARE QUALITY 10/01/19 10/31/20 1,696,572 1.85% 1,696,572 0 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%
28 CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION SERVICE 10/01/19 11/30/20 260,812 0.28% 213,577 47,235 81.89% 100.00% (18.11)%
29 WIOA YOUTH 07/01/19 06/30/21 3,215,064 3.51% 3,224,575 -9,511 100.30% 100.00% 0.30%
30 WIOA ADULT 07/01/19 06/30/21 2,910,024 3.18% 2,917,162 -7,138 100.25% 100.00% 0.25%
31 WIOA DISLOCATED 07/01/19 06/30/21 5,225,254 5.71% 5,225,254 0 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%
32 TANF/CHOICE 10/01/19 10/31/20 3,383,113 3.70% 3,059,398 323,715 90.43% 100.00% (9.57)%
33 EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 10/01/19 06/30/21 1,540,825 1.68% 1,128,904 411,921 73.27% 100.00% (26.73)%
34 TRADE ACT SERVICES 10/01/19 12/31/20 414,631 0.45% 356,124 58,507 85.89% 100.00% (14.11)%
35 WORKFORCE COMMISSION INITIATIVES 10/01/19 06/30/21 103,928 0.11% 45,081 58,847 43.38% 85.74% (42.36)%
36 REEMPLOYMNET SERVICES AND ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT 10/01/19 12/31/20 966,363 1.06% 966,363 0 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%
37 WIOA ALTERNATIVE FUNDING FOR STATEWIDE ACTIVITIES 07/15/19 08/31/21 457,361 0.50% 326,205 131,156 71.32% 80.33% (9.01)%
38 BOARD PERFORMANCE AWARD-YOUTH INSPERATION 01/01/20 06/30/21 75,000 0.08% 38,669 36,332 51.56% 83.33% (31.78)%
39 BOARD PERFORMANCE AWARD-TEXAS HIRABILITY AWARD 01/01/20 06/30/21 30,000 0.03% 30,000 0.00% 83.33% (83.33)%


Totals 91,546,093 100.00% 82,391,279 9,088,483 90.00% 99.87% (9.87)%


Fiscal Year 2019


40 WORKFORCE COMMISSION INITIATIVES 10/01/18 05/31/21 122,815 100.00% 119,432 3,383 97.25% 93.73% 3.51%


Totals 122,815 100.00% 119,432 3,383 97.25% 93.73% 3.51%


Grant Totals 171,751,883 110,091,979 61,593,573 64.10% 76.18% (12.08)%


STATEMENT OF GRANT EXPENDITURES DETAIL
Contract to Date


March 31, 2021


2







STATEMENT OF GRANT EXPENDITURES DETAIL
Contract to Date


March 31, 2021


1,2,3,24,25,26 CHILD CARE DIRECT CARE\LOCAL MATCH


4,27 CHILD CARE QUALITY


5 CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION SERVICE


7,8,9,10,29,30,
31 WIA ADULT\DISLOCATED\YOUTH


11,12,32 TANF\SNAP


14,33 EMPLOYMENT SERVICES


15,34 TAA


16 V ETERAN RESOURCES


17 NON CUSTODIAL PARENT


18,35,40 WORKFORCE COMMISSION INITIATIVES


19 REEMPLOYMNET SERVICES AND ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT


20 INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT SERVICES CONTRACT


21 STUDENT HIREABILITY NAVIGATOR PROGRAM


22 WAGES SERVICES FOR PAID WORK EXPERIENCE


38,39 BOARD SERVICE AWARD


FY 2020 funds available for carry over into FY 2021 total approximately $2.6 million.  Expenditures are expected to approach closer to targets by 
the end of the third quarter as the programs continue to pay for additional ITA customers for training and  operational staff related costs and fully 
utilize the carry over from FY 2020.  


These funds are utilized to address customer lay offs due to their jobs being transferred outside of the U.S.  There are not a substantial amount of 
lay offs at time  that meet that criteria.  


This funding source supports several of the Board's projects, the primary ones being the annual Red, White, and You veterans and Youth Career 
Fairs.  Expenditures are projected to approach closer to targets by the end of the grant year as the  final expenditures are incurred for these 
programs. 


An additional $372,000 was received from TWC in April 2020 for additional COVID-19 related funding.  The majority of these funds were allocated 
to Equus to originally hire 14 temporary staff to assist within the workforce centers (number of temporary staff has dropped to 10 for FY 2021).   
An additional $453,000 was also received by TWC by the end of the fourth quarter of FY2020 due to unspent salaries and benefits for TWC staff.  
Total unspent funds for both the Board and Equus total approximately $611,000 at the end of FY 2020 and will but utilized as carry over for FY 
2021.     The FY 2020 grant was extended from December 31, 2020 until June 30, 2021.  All funds are projected to be expended by both the FY 
2020 and FY 2021  grant end dates.  


This grant's primary purpose is to provide year round work experience opportunities for student's with disabilities.  This program has struggled to 
place a significant number of participants at this time.  


Not as many participants are currently enrolled due to limited participation by the court system within our region. 


This funding source supports two staff, one at the NCTCOG and one Equus staff.  Currently it does not require the entire $200,000 available 
budget to support the two staff.  This particular funding source awards the NCTCOG 1/12 of the grant amount each month both staff are 
employed regardless of the expenditure amounts.  


The Board received two (2) service awards during the November 2019 TWC conference.  Plans for these will be implemented and the funds are 
projected to be expended prior to the grant end dates. 


TWC currently has lifted penalties and sanctions related to customer participation guidelines.  Participation by customers has been low.  


Approximately $75,000 of October 2020 expenditures were utilized to finish the FY 2020 grant before its end date which created carry over for FY 
2021.  The new grant is expected to approach closer to  targets by the end of the third quarter as the quality initiatives are fully implemented.  


This grant is utilized to pay for the 10 veteran FTE's (located within the 11 workforce centers) share of infrastructure costs such as rent, utilities, 
telephone, postage, maintenance, supplies,  and computer support costs.  At this time their share of these costs has been lower than anticipated 
primarily due to certain infrastructure costs being less than planed (utilities, postage, communications, supplies).  Also, there will be substantial 
costs charged to this grant once the Denton Workforce Center is relocated including its share of relocation costs such as movers, cabling, 
furniture, and security costs.  The move is currently planned to be completed by June 30, 2021.


This grant supports the Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) staff who are located within the Greenville, Waxahachie, Corsicana, Granbury, and 
McKinney workforce centers regarding their share of rent, utilities, telephone, postage, janitorial, maintenance, and data line costs.  Expenditures 
have not materialized at this time as anticipated due to lower workforce infrastructure costs, primarily including utilities, telephone, and postage 
costs being less than target for the first 6 months of FY 2021.  Also, an additional  $264,000 was received by TWC during the months of  January-
March  for the one-time costs projected for the integration of VR staff within the Terrell, Stephenville, and Denton workforce centers projected to 
occur in February,  May, and June.  These one-time costs include such costs as data lines, furniture, telephones, signage, and handicapped 
accessible doors. Expenditures for these items will occur as the centers are completed.  


Equus is currently behind target by approximately 14.8% or $7.4 million (for the normal at risk child care) primarily due to recertifications and new 
enrollments experiencing significant customers who are ineligible due to the work requirement eligibility requirement.  Also contributing to lower 
enrollment than anticipated is the significant Equus staff turnover rate during FY 2021.   As of March, the average number of kids served per day 
totaled 5,744 or 81.8% of target (target totals 7,025).  Low expenditures are a statewide issue and TWC is considering a deobligation of projected 
unspent funds for all the Boards and a reallocations based on the latest census data.   


Regarding the COVID related child care expenses, only the 25% supplemental payment to open child care providers were originally planned only 
for the months October-December 2020.  TWC recently communicated to the Boards that the 25% supplemental payments will be extended 
through July 2021 and allocated our Board area approximately $5.6 million for those type expenditures.  Our Board area did not  expend the entire 
budget available for FY 2020 COVID related expenditures and will return those funds to TWC at the end of the grant period. 


                                                                                Notes


This grant provides funding for the child care center swipe card system support.  TWC communicated to the Boards that this system would be 
discontinued as of March 31, 2021.  Expenditures for this grant will not accumulative beyond this period and will be closed by the end of May 
2021.


Equus has experienced staff attrition within this grant during the initial six months of FY 2021.  Expenditures are projected to approach closer to 
targets by the end of the fiscal year as positions are filled.  


3







Workforce Center 
Contractors


Totals W\Out 
Unallocated Funds


Totals With 
Unallocated 


Funds


Operations
 Special 
Projects


Approved  Board 
Budget


Unallocated 
Funds


Total Available 
Board Funding Equus Total Allocation Total Allocation


10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020
Grant 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021


Child Care Direct  Care 3,903,204$       322,780$           4,225,984$            432,884$         4,658,868$         44,497,587$              48,723,571$              49,156,455$      
Child Care Quality 1,694,184 1,694,184$            -76,171 1,618,013$         1,694,184 1,618,013
Child Care Local Match -$                    8,839,430 8,839,430 8,839,430
Child Care PRS 235,000 235,000 235,000$            5,465,000 5,700,000 5,700,000
WIOA Youth 1,141,984 17,147 1,159,131 57,555 1,216,685$         1,556,689 2,715,820 2,773,374
WIOA Alternative Funding for Statewide Activities 205,777 205,777 205,777$            0 205,777 205,777
WIOA Adult 1,377,521 17,792 1,395,313 95,173 1,490,486$         1,930,200 3,325,513 3,420,687
Wage Services for Paid Work Experience 0 -$                    112,500 112,500 112,500
WIOA Dislocated Workers 2,030,118 25,317 2,055,435 16,832 2,072,267$         2,440,157 4,495,592 4,512,425
WIOA Rapid Response 10,251 10,251 4,996 15,248$              33,935 44,186 49,183
SCSEP 7,501 7,501 333 7,833$                7,501 7,833
Student Hireability Navigator 112,816 112,816 15,263 128,079$            71,921 184,737 200,000
TWC RAG\ISAM 38,686 38,686 -1,997 36,689$              38,686 36,689
Non Custodial Parent 112,537 5,375 117,912 7,145 125,057$            165,862 283,774 290,919
SNAP 455,307 9,568 464,875 22,805 487,680$            647,176 1,112,051 1,134,856
TANF/CHOICES 1,515,475 16,018 1,531,493 19,521 1,551,014$         2,155,810 3,687,303 3,706,824
Trade Act Services 33,356 33,356 14,466 47,822$              552,863 586,219 600,686
Employment Services 811,134 64,502 875,637 21,105 896,741$            458,729 1,334,366 1,355,470
Veterans Resource Administration 123,115 10,750 133,865 -2,356 131,509$            7,471 141,336 138,980
Workforce Commission Initiatives 115,308 115,308 -21,717 93,591$              0 115,308 93,591
Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment 258,551 10,750 269,301 -26,799 242,502$            540,328 809,629 782,830
Summer Earn and Learn 84,430 84,430 187,275 271,704$            660,365 744,795 932,069
Performance Incentive Awards FY 2020 105,000 105,000 105,000$            105,000 105,000
Infrastructure Support Services Contract 418,712 150,000 568,712 -60,544 508,168$            50,650 619,362 558,818
Child Care Attendance Automation 260,812 260,812 260,812$            0 260,812 260,812
Apprenticeship Texas Expansion Grant 41,999 41,999 41,999$              41,999 41,999


15,092,777$     650,000$           15,742,777$          705,769$         16,448,546$       70,186,674$              85,929,451$              86,635,220$      


Child Care Direct  Care 1,765,323.03 5,039.47 1,770,362$            $21,661,511 23,431,874$              23,431,874$      
SCSEP 3,968 0 3,968 3,968 3,968
Child Care Quality 599,465 0 599,465 0 599,465 599,465
Child Care Local Match 0 0 0 304,721 304,721 304,721
Child Care PRS 0 0 0 1,882,118 1,882,118 1,882,118
WIOA Youth 426,158 384 426,542 674,700 1,101,243 1,101,243
WIOA Adult 584,424 430 584,854 1,228,126 1,812,980 1,812,980
WIOA Dislocated Workers 850,550 620 851,171 1,655,937 2,507,108 2,507,108
WIOA Rapid Response 5,167 0 5,167 21,706 26,873 26,873
Student Hireablility Navigator 52,851 0 52,851 34,896 87,747 87,747
TRS Award 0 0 0 0 0
Non Custodial Parent 51,783 172 51,955 70,501 122,456 122,456
SNAP Employment and Training 190,396 218 190,614 224,050 414,664 414,664
VR-Summer Earn and Learn 66 0 66 2,373 2,439 2,439
TANF/CHOICES 577,711 508 578,220 730,461 1,308,681 1,308,681
Wage Services for Paid Work Experience 0 0 0 4,565 4,565 4,565
Trade Act Services 19,280 88 19,368 159,529 178,898 178,898
Employment Services 381,916 1,623 383,539 235,815 619,354 619,354
Apprenticeship Texas Expansion Grant 33,507 0 33,507 33,507 33,507
Veterans Resource Administration 57,669 344 58,013 1,616 59,629 59,629
Board Performance Award-Texas Hireability Award 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment 106,963 491 107,454 204,736 312,190 312,190
Board Performance Award-Youth Insperation 25,462 0 25,462 0 25,462 25,462
TWC RAG/ISAM 14,761 0 14,761 14,761 14,761
WIOA Alternative Funding for Statewide Activities 83,605 0 83,605 0 83,605 83,605
Workforce Commission Initiatives 27,143 84 27,227 0 27,227 27,227
Infrastructure Support Services Contract 128,870 8,889 137,759 8,169 145,928 145,928
Child Care Attendance Automation 54,563 0 54,563 0 54,563 54,563
Totals: 6,041,600$       18,892$             6,060,492$            29,105,532$              35,166,024$              35,166,024$      


Totals: 40.0% 2.9% 38.5% 41.5% 40.9% 40.6%
Board Established Benchmarks 49.4% 50.0% 49.4% 51.2% 50.9% 50.5%
Over / (Under) Expended (9.4)% (47.1)% (10.9)% (9.7)% (9.9)% (9.9)%


STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURE DETAIL


March 31, 2021
Fiscal Year to Date


Budget Summary


Workforce Development Board


4







Workforce Center 
Contractors


Operations
Other Special 


Projects
Approved 


Board Budget
Unallocated 


Funds
Total Available 
Board Funding Equus


10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020 10/1/2020
9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021 9/30/2021


SUBCONTRACTOR OPERATIONS:
Salaries 4,398,652$       4,398,652$    4,398,652$        7,692,819$             12,091,471$        12,091,471$    
Fringe Benefits 2,172,647         2,172,647      2,172,647          1,429,350               3,601,997 3,601,997        
Indirect Cost\PEO 1,163,120         1,163,120      1,163,120          1,023,696               2,186,816 2,186,816        
Profit 791,398                  791,398 791,398           
Occupancy 2,648,777         2,648,777      2,648,777          215,683                  2,864,460 2,864,460        
Travel 263,736            263,736         263,736             140,282                  404,018 404,018           
Equipment 1,241,234 650,000         1,891,234      1,891,234          16,460                    1,907,694 1,907,694        
Other 982,019            982,019         982,019             338,259                  1,320,278 1,320,278        
Prof Services $2,222,591 -                 2,222,591      2,222,591          59,617                    2,282,208 2,282,208        


Total Cost of Operations 15,092,777$     650,000$       15,742,777$  -$               15,742,777$      11,707,563$           27,450,340$        27,450,340$    
Total Program Services -                 60,205,429             60,205,429          60,205,429      
Budget Adjustments -                 705,769         705,769             (1,726,318)              (1,726,318)           (1,020,549)       
Total Budget 15,092,777$     650,000$       15,742,777$  705,769$       16,448,546$      70,186,674$           85,929,451$        86,635,220$    


SUBCONTRACTOR OPERATIONS:
Salaries $1,954,204 $1,954,204 3,516,517$           5,470,721$          5,470,721$      
Fringe BeAPPRENTICESHIP TEX 945,822 $945,822 699,398 1,645,220            1,645,220        
Indirect Cost 513,305 $513,305 460,159 973,464               973,464           
Profit $0 0 -                       -                   
Occupancy 1,300,368 $1,300,368 94,189 1,394,557            1,394,557        
Travel 1,109 $1,109 6,929 8,038                   8,038               
Equipment 232,255 $232,255 14,357 246,613               246,613           
Other 377,054 $377,054 120,902 497,955               497,955           
Prof Services 717,485 18,892           $736,376 11,544 747,921               747,921           


Total Cost of Operations 6,041,600$       18,892$         $6,060,492 -                 4,923,996$           10,984,488$        10,984,488$    
Total Program Services 0 24,181,536           24,181,536          24,181,536
Total Expenditures 6,041,600$       18,892$         $6,060,492 29,105,532$         35,166,024$        $35,166,024


Remaining Budget 9,051,177$       631,108$       9,682,285$    41,081,142$           50,763,427$        51,469,197$    


Cost of Operations 40.0% 2.9% 38.50% 42.1% 40.0% 40.0%
Program Services 0.0% 0.0% 0.00% 40.2% 40.2% 40.2%
Total Expenditures 40.0% 2.9% 38.50% 41.5% 40.9% 40.6%
Board Established Benchmarks 49.4% 50.0% 49.4% 51.2% 50.9% 50.5%
Over / (Under) Expended (9.4)% (47.1)% (10.9)% (9.7)% (9.9)% (9.9)%


STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Workforce Development Board


Fiscal Year to Date


Expenditure Percentages Summary


Expenditure Summary


Budget Summary


Totals With 
Unallocated 


Funds


March 31, 2021


Contract Beginning
Contract Ending


Totals W\Out 
Unallocated 


Funds
Type of Expenditure


5








600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 
P.O. Box 5888, Arlington, Texas  76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 ● FAX: 817-640-6480 
E-mail:  workforce@dfwjobs.com 


 In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 
 


 


 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 


Policy Name: Description: 
Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified 
Spouses & Foster Youth 


Guidelines for administering Priority of Service to 
Veterans, Qualified Spouses and Foster Youth 


Date of Approval:  Revision History:  
May 25, 2021    3rd Revision 


Effective Date: Scheduled for Review:  
May 25, 2021 May 25, 2025 


Policy Topic:  Administering Department:  
Universal Services Operations 


                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
Current Foster Youth: youth, age fourteen (14) or older, receiving substitute care services under the 
managing conservatorship of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS), 
including youth residing in private foster homes, group homes, residential treatment centers, 
juvenile correctional institutions, and relative care. 
 
Eligible Foster Youth: a current or former foster youth. 
 
Eligible Individual:  a veteran, federal qualified spouse, or state qualified spouse. 
 
Federal Qualified Spouse: the spouse of any veteran who meets one or more of the following 
service statuses: 


• a veteran who died of a service-connected disability; 
• member of the Armed Forces serving on active duty who, at the time of application for the 


priority, is listed in one or more of the following categories for a total of more than ninety (90) 
days: 


o missing in action; 
o captured in line of duty by a hostile force;  
o forcibly detained or interned in the line of duty by a foreign government or power; 


• a veteran who has a total disability resulting from a service-connected disability, as 
evaluated by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs; or  


• a veteran who died while suffering from a total disability which resulted from a service-
connected disability, as evaluated by the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs 


 
Former Foster Youth: a youth up to 23 years of age, who formerly was under the managing 
conservatorship of DFPS, until: 


• a court transferred the conservatorship; 
• being legally emancipated (i.e., the youth’s minority status removed by a court); or 
• the youth attained (eighteen) 18 years of age. 


 


POLICY NUMBER: 
CEUS03-201605-03 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


Noneligible Individual: an individual who does not meet the definition of veteran, federal qualified 
spouse, or state qualified spouse. 
 
Point of Entry: reception through a Workforce Solutions Office, as part of an application process for 
a specific program, or through any other method by which eligible individuals express an interest in 
receiving services, either in person or online. 
 
Priority of Service: the right of eligible individuals to take precedence over noneligible individuals 
in obtaining workforce services.   
 
State Qualified Spouse: a spouse who meets the definition of federally qualified spouse; or a 
spouse of any member of the Armed Forces who died while serving in active military, naval, or air 
service.  
 
Taking precedence: 


• eligible individuals receive access to workforce services before noneligible individuals; or 


• if workforce services are limited, eligible individuals receive access to workforce services 
instead of noneligible individuals. 


 
Transitioning Service Member: an individual in active duty status, including separation leave, who is 
within 24 months of retirement or twelve (12) months of separation. 


• a transitioning service member is still considered employed by the military and is therefore 
not a veteran; and 


• a transitioning service member on terminal leave with a DD 214 (Certificate of Release or 
Discharge from Active Duty) who indicates a discharge status other than “dishonorable” is 
considered a veteran and is eligible for priority of service.   


 
Veteran (federal/state qualified): a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service, 
and who was discharged or released therefrom under conditions other than dishonorable as 
specified at 38 U.S.C. 101(2).  Active service includes full-time duty in the National Guard or a 
Reserve component, other than full-time duty for training purposes only.  (Note: This definition does 
not apply to eligibility for services provided by Disabled Veterans’ Outreach Program [DVOP] or 
Local Veterans’ Employment Representatives [LVER] staff.) 
 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) affords priority of services to veterans, 
qualified spouses, and foster youth. Requirements for priority of service apply to all workforce 
service programs funded in whole or part by the U.S. Department of Labor Employment and 
Training Administration or state funds. Workforce services must be prioritized and targeted to youth 
transitioning out of the foster care system and for former foster youth.  Eligible foster youth and 
former foster youth receive priority over all other equally qualified individuals, except veterans and 
qualified spouses.  However, noneligible individuals who are currently receiving workforce services 
cannot be displaced to provide priority of service to eligible individuals or eligible foster youth.  
 
Priority of service applies to veterans and federal qualified spouses for federally funded programs 
and veterans and state qualified spouses for state-funded programs.  WSNCT Centers must allow 
individuals to self-identify as veterans and foster youth at the point of entry via the Greeter system 
sign-in.  Workforce Center staff must ensure eligible individuals are: 


• informed of entitlement to priority of service and the full array of employment, training, and 
placement services available under priority of service; and 


• any applicable eligibility requirements for those programs and services. 
 


Eligible individuals receiving priority of service must sign a Self-Attestation Form to certify meeting 
the definition of veteran, federal qualified spouse, or state qualified spouse. The Self-Attestation 







Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


Form is not required when a DD 214 “Certificate of Release or Discharge from Active Duty” is on file 
in the Workforce Solutions Office by either the veteran presenting a DD 214 upon arrival or 
indicating veteran status in WorkInTexas.com. 
 
The spouse of a living veteran or service member will lose his or her eligibility if the veteran or 
service member loses the status that is the basis for eligibility, or divorces the living veteran or 
service member. 
 
Workforce Center staff must inform individuals of penalties associated with claiming eligible veteran 
status and/or fraudulent, fictitious, or revoked military records. Texas Penal Code 32.54(c), makes 
falsely using or claiming to hold a military record for the purpose of receiving priority of service a 
Class B misdemeanor. Additionally, Texas Labor Code Chapter 105 addresses the termination of 
employment for falsification of military records in obtaining employment or employment benefits. 
 
Workforce Center staff at all service delivery points must maintain and post for public access, to the 
extent possible, written copies of the priority of service policy and procedures.  
 
Eligible individuals participating in state or federally funded initiatives that require documentation 
beyond self-attestation must provide one of the following: 
 
Veteran & Transitioning Service Members 


• DD 214, Member 4, or Member 6 
• DD 215 (Correction to DD 214), possibly associated with the DD 214 
• Army Enlisted Records or Officer Records Brief 
• Air Force Military Personal Flight Record 
• Navy and Marine Corps Electronic Service Records 
• State of Service Letter stating service dates and character of service 
• Memorandum for Record from the Unit Commander stating service dates and character of 


service (Unit Commander may be from the lowest organizational unit) 
• National Guard Bureau-22 Form 
• Military orders detailing the service member’s termination of service or change of duty 


station 
o Expiration of Term of Service 
o End of Active Service 
o Retirement Orders 


• U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs Service Verification Letter 
• Texas Department of Public Safety–issued licenses with “veteran” annotated 


o driver license 
o concealed handgun license 


• Retired military identification card 
 
Federal Qualified Spouse and State Qualified Spouse 


• Marriage license; 
• Military orders, with dependents listed, such as Permanent Change of Station orders; or 
• Military dependent identification card (current); or  
• Documentation of a veteran’s status via: 


o U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs Verification Letter; 
o U.S. Department of Defense Letter; or 
o Obituary 


 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
Workforce Center Subrecipient must establish internal procedures in compliance with this policy. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 01-21: “Applying Priority of Service and Identifying and  







Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


 Documenting Veterans and Transitioning Service Members.” 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 43-11, Change 2: “Priority of Service to Eligible Foster  
           Youth.” 
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 


Approved by      Reviewed by 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager, Compliance and 
Continuous Improvement 


 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






Vision: Workforce Solutions is the recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


1 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
             Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 
 
 


Policy Name: Description: 


Development and Maintenance of the 


Target Occupations, In-Demand 
Occupations, and In-Demand 


Industries 


Selection criteria for determining the 


Target Occupations, In-Demand 
Occupations, and In-Demand Industries 


Date of Approval: Revision History: 
2nd Revision  May 25, 2021 


Effective Date: Scheduled for Review: 


May 25, 2021 May 25, 2025 


Policy Topic: Administering Department: 


WIOA Policy, Planning, and Public Affairs 


 


 


DEFINITIONS: 


In-Demand Industry: Industry which meets the following minimum conditions: 


• Demonstrates a substantial number of openings due to job growth rather than 


openings due to job turnover. 


• Uniquely positioned in our region in comparison to the nation 


 


In-Demand Occupation: Occupation which meets the following minimum condition: 


• Demonstrates a substantial number of openings due to job growth rather than 


openings due to job turnover. 


 
Target Occupation: In-demand occupation which meets the following minimum conditions: 


• Connected to a training or educational component that  results in a credential or 


certificate. 


• Results in a wage that meets our Board’s self-sufficiency requirements; and 


• Demonstrates a substantial number of openings due to job growth rather than 


openings due to job turnover. 


 
POLICY STATEMENT: 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) develops the Target Occupations, In-


Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries Lists to identify high-demand areas that 


are critical to the regional economy. The occupations and industries are established based 


on economic indicators, local wisdom, and will be reviewed annually.  


POLICY NUMBER: 
CEW01-201805-02 


600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 


P.O. Box 5888 | Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 | Fax: 817-640-6480 


E-mail: workforce@dfwjobs.com 
In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: Workforce Solutions is the recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


2 


 


 


 
The WSNCT Board must review and adopt the Target Occupations, In-Demand 


Occupations, and In-Demand Industries Lists annually and reserves the right to make 


subsequent changes between formal reviews. Consideration will be given to the effects of 


significant economic disruptions on the labor market. 


 
The approved lists, and any subsequent revisions, must be emailed to 


Board.Plans@twc.state.tx.us.  


 


Development of the In-Demand Industries 


The Development of the In-Demand Industries should include a review of the following criteria: 


• Total current supply of jobs 


• Growth and total demand 


• Location quotient 


• Historical growth 


 


Development of the In-Demand Occupations  


The Development of the In-Demand Occupations should include a review of the following criteria: 


• Total current supply of jobs 


• Growth and total demand 


• Unemployment rate 


• Historical growth 


 


Development of the Target Occupation List 


The Development of the TOL should include a review of the following criteria: 


• Total current supply of jobs 


• Growth and total demand 


• Historical growth 


• Annual wages 


• Unemployment rate 


• Typical education-level required 


• Local wisdom, including input from Board members and partner entities 
o Educational, economic development, career seekers, and employer partners may 


request the addition or removal of an occupation to amend the proposed TOL. Any 
request received must include the occupation name, corresponding Standard 
Occupation (SOC) code, and supporting documentation, such as letters from employers, 
and quantitative information supporting the labor market need for the stated occupation. 


 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 


Board staff will adhere to the development criteria outlined in this policy. The Workforce 


Subrecipient staff shall promote the Targeted Occupations List to career seekers. 


 


Board and Workforce Subrecipient staff will direct employers, training providers, and/or 


career seekers inquiring about amending the Target Occupations List to send the  


required information to Board’s Research Analyst and Planner. 


 



mailto:Board.Plans@twc.state.tx.us





Vision: Workforce Solutions is the recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


3 


 


 


 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 


Texas Workforce Commission, WD 24-20 In-Demand Industries, In-Demand Occupations, and 
Target Occupations Lists  


 
 
INQUIRIES: 


Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 
 
 
 
 


 


 
Approved by 


Roger Harris 


Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


  
Reviewed by 


Debra Kosarek 


Sr. Program Manager, Compliance and 


Continuous Improvement 
 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 


P.O. Box 5888 | Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 | Fax: 817-640-6480 


E-mail: workforce@dfwjobs.com 
In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 


 


 


 


Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 


Policy Name: 
Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) – 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Funding for Training Programs  


Description: 
Information and guidance for issuing Individual 
Training Accounts (ITAs) for training programs 


Date of Approval:  
May 25, 2021 


Revision History:  
1st Revision 


Effective Date:  
May 25, 2021 


Scheduled for Review:  
May 25, 2025 


Policy Topic:  
WIOA 


Administering Department:  
Operations 


 
                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
Eligible Training Provider:  Training providers who meet the eligibility criteria, information 
requirements, and procedures established by the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) to be 
eligible to receive WIOA funding.  
 
Individual Training Accounts (ITAs):  The ITA is established on behalf of an eligible participant to 
arrange for payment of training services with an eligible training provider. 
 
Registered Apprenticeship Program (RA):  A joint federal and state program that provides a 
flexible training system that combines job related technical instruction with structured on-the-job 
learning experiences.  Registered Apprenticeships have federally approved curricula and 
classroom education components leading to skills milestones and credential attainment. 


 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) provides ITAs, as appropriate, to eligible 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) participants. 
 
ITAs used to fund training programs located within the WSNCT Local Workforce Development 
Area (LWDA) or outside of the LWDA but within Texas must meet the following requirements: 


• Training program must be included on the statewide Eligible Training Provider List 
(ETPL) in Texas,  


• Training program must align with local target occupations. Training programs outside of 
the LWDA but within Texas must align with the target occupations in an area to which 
the participant is willing to commute or relocate,   


• ITA is used in accordance with other existing TWC guidance, and  


POLICY NUMBER: 
CEW01-201907-01 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


• ITA amount must not exceed $15,000 for training services, required fees, and materials. 
Exceptions to the ITA funding cap are determined on a case by case basis with sufficient 
documentation and Workforce Center Subrecipient management approval and include at 
a minimum: 


o Travel distance to an available training provider  
o There is no other training provider available for the specific occupation or 


certification needed 
o The participant is in need of a specialized occupational or industry recognized 


certification and other options are not available.  
 
ITAs may not be used to fund training programs provided by out-of-state training providers or 
institutions that do not have a physical location within Texas from which training, including 
online or remote learning, is provided. 
 
 RA programs must meet all ITA requirements listed in this policy with exception of the following: 


• Training program must align with local target occupations.   
 


ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
WSNCT Workforce Center Subrecipient must adhere to all requirements of this board policy and 
develop local policies and procedures in accordance.  A copy of the Subrecipient’s local policies 
and procedures must be submitted to the appropriate board staff. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 05-19, “Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, 
           Eligible Training Provider Program, Eligibility Criteria, and Performance Expectations” 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 12-19 Change 1, “Funding Training Programs Outside 
           of Local Workforce Development Areas through Individual Training Accounts” 
Texas Workforce Commission, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act: Guidelines for Adults, 
           Dislocated Workers, and Youth. 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Regulations at 20 CFR Part 680 Subpart D— Eligible 
           Training Providers 


 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 


 


 


 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 


Approved by:                Reviewed by: 
Roger Harris                                                       Debra Kosarek 
Board Chair                 Senior Program Manager, Compliance and  
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas           Continuous Improvement 


 
 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 


P.O. Box 5888 | Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 | Fax: 817-640-6480 


E-mail: workforce@dfwjobs.com 
In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 


 


 


 


Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 


Policy Name: 
WIOA Adult-Service Priority for 
Individualized Career & Training Services 
 


Description: 
Hierarchy of populations when administering 
WIOA Individualized Career and Training 
services to adults 


Date of Approval:  
May 25, 2021 


Revision History:  
5th Revision 


Effective Date:  
May 25, 2021 


Scheduled for Review:  
May 25, 2025 


Policy Topic:  
WIOA 


Administering Department:  
Operations 


                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
Current Foster Youth: youth, age fourteen (14) or older, receiving substitute care services under 
the managing conservatorship of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services 
(DFPS), including youth residing in private foster homes, group homes, residential treatment 
centers, juvenile correctional institutions, and relative care. 
 
Eligible Foster Youth: a current or former foster youth. 
 
Eligible Individual:  a veteran, federal qualified spouse, or state qualified spouse. 
 
Federal Qualified Spouse: the spouse of any veteran who meets one or more of the following 
service statuses: 


• a veteran who died of a service-connected disability; 
• member of the Armed Forces serving on active duty who, at the time of application for 


the priority, is listed in one or more of the following categories for a total of more than 
ninety (90) days: 


o missing in action; 
o captured in line of duty by a hostile force;  
o forcibly detained or interned in the line of duty by a foreign government or power; 


• a veteran who has a total disability resulting from a service-connected disability, as 
evaluated by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs; or  


• a veteran who died while suffering from a total disability which resulted from a service-
connected disability, as evaluated by the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs. 


 
Former Foster Youth: a youth up to 23 years of age, who formerly was under the managing 
conservatorship of DFPS, until: 


POLICY NUMBER: 
CEW06-201605-05 


 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


• a court transferred the conservatorship; 
• being legally emancipated (i.e., the youth’s minority status removed by a court); or 
• the youth attained (eighteen) 18 years of age. 


 
Noneligible Individual: an individual who does not meet the definition of eligible veteran, federal 
qualified spouse, or state qualified spouse. 
 
Point of Entry: reception through a Workforce Solutions Office, as part of an application process 
for a specific program, or through any other method by which eligible individuals express an 
interest in receiving services, either in person or online. 
 
Priority of Service: the right of eligible individuals to take precedence over noneligible 
individuals in obtaining workforce services.   
 
State Qualified Spouse: a spouse who meets the definition of federally qualified spouse; or a 
spouse of any member of the Armed Forces who died while serving in active military, naval, or 
air service. 
 
Taking precedence: 


• eligible individuals receive access to workforce services before noneligible 
individuals; or 


• if workforce services are limited, eligible individuals receive access to workforce 
services instead of noneligible individuals. 


 
Transitioning Service Member: an individual in active duty status, including separation leave, 
who is within 24 months of retirement or twelve (12) months of separation. 


• a transitioning service member is still considered employed by the military and is 
therefore not a veteran; and 


• a transitioning service member on terminal leave with a DD 214 (Certificate of Release 
or Discharge from Active Duty) who indicates a discharge status other than 
“dishonorable” is considered a veteran and is eligible for priority of service. 


 
Veteran (federal/state qualified): a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service, 
and who was discharged or released therefrom under conditions other than dishonorable as 
specified at 38 U.S.C. 101(2).  Active service includes full-time duty in the National Guard or a 
Reserve component, other than full-time duty for training purposes only.  (Note: This definition 
does not apply to eligibility for services provided by Disabled Veterans’ Outreach Program 
[DVOP] or Local Veterans’ Employment Representatives [LVER] staff.) 
 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) affords priority of services to veterans, 
qualified spouses, and foster youth.  Requirements for priority of service apply to all workforce 
service programs funded in whole or part by the U.S. Department of Labor Employment and 
Training Administration or state funds.   
 
Priority for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Individualized Career and Training 
Services must be given on a priority basis, regardless of funding levels, in the following order, 
to: 
 







 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 


Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 


 


1. Eligible veterans and eligible spouses, who are also recipients of public assistance, low 
income, or basic skills deficient. 


2. Non-covered persons (individuals who are not veterans or eligible spouses) who are 
also recipients of public assistance, low income or basic skills deficient as follows: 


a. Foster youth and former foster youth, as defined in WD Letter 43-11, Change 2, 
as required by Texas Family Code §264.121. 


b. Non-foster youth. 
3. All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses. 
4. Priority populations established by the governor as follows: 


a. All other foster youth and former foster youth, as required by Texas Labor Code 
§264.121. 


5. Non-covered individuals outside of the groups given priority under WIOA. 
 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
Workforce Center Subrecipient must establish internal procedures in compliance with this 
policy. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Board Policy, “Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified Spouses and Foster Youth.” 
Texas Family Code, Title 5 §264.121, “Transitional Living Services Program.” 
Texas Workforce Commission, WD Letter 01-21: “Applying Priority of Service and 
           Identifying and Documenting Veterans and Transitioning Service Members.”           
Texas Workforce Commission, WD Letter 43-11, Change 2: “Priority of Service for Eligible 
           Foster Youth-Update.” 
Texas Workforce Commission, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act: Guidelines for Adults,  
 Dislocated Workers and Youth. 
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 


 


 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 


Approved by:      Reviewed by: 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager - Compliance 
and Continuous Improvement 


                
  
 


 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


March 2021 
 


 
Workforce Board, Staff, and Centralized Functions 
 
The Board approved a budget for the Workforce Board, its staff, and centralized 
functions for FY 2021 in an amount totaling $15,742,777.  As of March (sixth month of 
FY 2021) the Board’s expenditures are approximately 10.9% or $1.7 million below 
benchmarks for this point of the fiscal year.   
 
Staffing Update 
 
A large portion of the lower than anticipated expenditure levels are attributable to the 
personnel costs.  These costs (salaries, fringe, and indirect costs) are approximately 
4.8% or $370,000 behind targets.  This is primarily due to the following: 
 


 Date  Date Total Months 


Position Vacant Filled 


Vacant 
Through 


March 2021 
       


    
Sr. Early Childhood Specialist 10\1\20 3\31\21 6.0 
Business Development Liaison 10\1\20 11\16\20 1.5 
Business Development Liaison 10\1\20 3\31\21 6.0 
Solutions Analyst 2\24\21 3\31\21 1.2 
Total   14.7 
    


 
 
In addition to the above, RIS (technology) staff and the fiscal monitor staff are 


approximately 2.7% and 11.8% behind established targets respectively due to staff 


charging their labor to the Workforce Board funding at a lower rate than anticipated.   


 
Travel/Staff Development 
 
Travel and staff development budgets that were included within the FY 2021 workforce 
budget totaled $361,875.  These categories are currently behind target amounts 
cumulatively by 47.3% or $171,000.  
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic event, NCTCOG staff travel and staff development 
activities (including a travel component), has been suspended until further notice.  If 
restrictions are lifted later within the fiscal year, expenditures will approach closer to 
targets at that time. 
 
 







Equipment and Software 
 
An equipment and software budget totaling $1,241,234 is include within the FY 2021 
workforce budget.  The primary items included are as follows: 
 


• Microsoft software licenses 
• Workforce Center Computers 
• Workforce center computer lease payments 
• Workforces share of the NCTCOG infrastructure costs for items including 


servers, switches, routers, and security appliances.   
• Vehicles 


 
This category is approximately 31.2% or $387,000 behind target.  At this time, it is 
projected that these expenditures will approach closer to target levels by the end of FY 
2021.  Staff are currently reviewing any potential savings to determine if they can be 
reallocated to other projects.   
 
Professional Services 
 
A professional services budget totaling $1,881,066 was included within FY 2021 
workforce budget.  The primary items included are the following: 
 


• Legal 
• Network support 
• Child care center swipe card support 
• Contract services 


 
This category is approximately 13.3% or 251,000 behind targets primarily due to: 
 


• Child Care center swipe card support-behind target 29.1% or $75,000. These 
expenditures pay for the support of the parent swipe card system within the child 
care centers that record child attendance. TWC informed the Boards that this 
system will be removed as of March 31, 2021.  Once final invoices are paid 
through this month, the savings will be reviewed to determine if they can be 
reallocated to other projects. 


• Contract Services-behind target 17.6% or $147,000.  This category includes 
items such as: 
 Performance incentive awards received by TWC within FY 2020 
 Laserfiche support 
 Website redesign 
 Strategic planning services 
 Consultants for technology support 


The above items are projected to approach target levels by the end of FY 2021. 
 
Special Projects Update 
 
$650,000 of special projects were included within the FY 2021 budget.  This funding 
was primarily dedicated for the leasehold improvements as it relates to the move to the 
new Denton Workforce Center.  This project is currently behind target by approximately 
47.1% or 306,000.   
 







The new Denton Workforce Center is currently being constructed and is scheduled to 
be completed by the end of May 2021 (occupancy planned by July 1, 2021).  In 
addition, additional space became available adjacent to the Terrell and Stephenville 
Workforce Centers for a sufficient amount to accommodate the integration of the 
Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) staff located in those areas.  The remodel and move 
costs associated with these two locations were not included within the initial budget.   
 
The expenditures related to these move and remodel costs should begin to accumulate 
in May and June as the locations are completed.  Due to change orders for the Denton 
construction of the new facility plus other unforeseen remodel and move costs to 
integrate the VR staff in Terrell and Stephenville, it’s currently estimated that final costs 
will exceed the current budget by approximately $200,000.  Savings from other budget 
categories will be reviewed to determine if they can be reallocated to this project.  
 
Workforce Center Subrecipient 
 
The Board currently has contracts with Equus to operate its workforce centers in the 
amount of $70.2 million. As of March (sixth month of Equus contract) expenditures are 
behind targets by approximately 9.7% or $6.8 million. Below is a summary of grant 
noteworthy information: 
 


• Child Care (Direct Care and Local Match-Non COVID-19) – Expenditures are 
currently behind target by approximately 14.8% or $7.4 million.  Low 
expenditures are primarily due to recertifications and new enrollments 
experiencing a significant number of customers who are ineligible due to the 
work requirement component of the eligibility determination guidelines. Also 
contributing to the lower enrollment rate than anticipated is Equus’s significant 
staff turnover rate occurring during FY 2021.  Low expenditures are a statewide 
issue and TWC is considering a COVID allocation adjustment of projected 
unspent funds for all Boards.   


 
TWC's established average kids served per day target equals 7,025 for FY 2021.   
As of March, the enrollment totaled 5,744 or 81.8% of target.  
 
The Covid-19 related expenditures for the second quarter of FY 2021 totaled 
$4.5 million (currently ahead of target by 35.6 % or $1.2 million but will approach 
closer to targets once additional COVID funds are allocated to Equus) and were 
related to the 25% supplemental payments to open providers.  These type 
expenditures were scheduled to end at the end of December 2020 but have been 
extended by TWC until July 2021.  TWC allocated our Board an additional $5.6 
million to accommodate the additional expenditures for that time period.  
 


• WIOA –Overall WIOA (Adult, Dislocated, and Youth grants) expenditures are 
currently at target levels.  The Youth grant, specifically, is experiencing challenges 
meeting target level enrollment and expenditure targets (behind current expenditure 
target by 18.6% or $265,000) primarily due to the COVID-19 situation and the youth 
feeling unsafe working in a public forum.  Equus has developed an outreach and 
enrollment plan to increase the participation within this program.   


 
• TANF\SNAP-These programs are currently behind expenditure targets by 


approximately 14.6% $393,000 primarily due to TWC removing the majority of the 
participation requirements as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  It currently 







appears that it will be challenging to expend these grant funds prior to the grant end 
date if TWC continues to maintain the exclusion of the participation requirements. 


 
The Board staff will closely monitor expenditure rates of both the Board and its 
workforce service delivery contractor for the FY 2021.   Board staff will work diligently 
with our workforce contractor, Equus, to ensure that the workforce programs are 
operating as effectively and efficiently as possible. 








Workforce Financial Report


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program.
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the
hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. Workforce Solutions for
North Central Texas services are provided based on eligibility.


May 25,2021 | Presented By: Randy Richardson







Workforce Board, Staff
& Centralized Functions


Budget Year
• Budget Year is October 1st, 2020 through 


September 30th, 2021


Approved Budget
• Approved Budget totals $15,742,777


Expenditures
• Behind March targets by 10.9% or $1.7 million







Staff Update


Budget 
• Personnel Costs Budgeted                                   


(salaries, fringe and indirect) - $7,734,419


Expenditures
• Behind targets by 4.8% or $370,000







Staff Update (cont’d)


Date Date Total Months


Position Vacant Filled


Vacant 
Through 


December 
2020 


Sr. Early Childhood Specialist 10\1\20 3\31\21 6.0
Business Development Liaison 10\1\20 11\16\20 1.5
Business Development Liaison 10\1\20 3\31\21 6.0
Solutions Analyst 2\24\21 3\31\21 1.2
Total 14.7







Additional Factors that Contribute to 
Lower than Anticipated Personnel 
Expenditures:


• NCTCOG Fiscal Monitors- Approximately 


11.8% behind established targets


• NCTCOG RIS (technology support)-


Approximately 2.7% behind established 


targets


Staff Update (cont’d)







Budget-$361,875
• Overnight
• Non-overnight
• Staff development


Expenditures
• Behind targets by 47.3% or $171,000
• Due to COVID-19 pandemic, NCTCOG travel 


has been suspended until further notice


Travel/Staff Development







Budget-$1,241,234
• Microsoft software licenses
• Workforce center computer purchases
• Workforce center computer lease payments
• Workforce share of the NCTCOG 


infrastructure costs for items including 
servers, switches, routers, and security 
appliances.  


• Vehicles


Expenditures
• Behind targets by 31.2% or $387,000
• Projected to approach closer to targets by 


end of fiscal year
• Staff reviewing for potential savings


Equipment and Software







Budget-$1,881,066
• Legal
• Network support


• Child Care center 
swipe card support


• Contract services


Professional Services


Expenditures
• Behind targets by 13.3% or $251,000


̶ Child Care center swipe card-29.1% or $75,000 
behind target-TWC ending this service 3\31\21


̶ Contract Services-17.6% or $147,000 behind 
target
 Performance incentive awards
 Laserfiche support
 Website redesign
 Strategic planning
 Consultants for technology support







Leasehold Improvements
• Budget $650,000
• Expenditures behind target by 47.1% or 


$306,000
• Denton relocation to new facility projected 


7\1\21
• Unanticipated costs related to integration of 


VR staff in Terrell and Stephenville plus 
change orders for the new Denton facility


• Project an additional $200,000 of 
expenditures over and above budget amount


Special Projects Update







• Contract Year is October 1st, 2020 – September 30th, 2021
• Contract Amount is $70.2 million
• Expenditures are behind targets by 9.7% or $6.8 million


Child Care (Direct Care and Local Match)
̶ Normal Child Care At-risk expenditures are 14.8% or $7.4 million behind target 


amounts.
̶ Low expenditures primarily due to significant number of potential new customers being 


determined ineligible due to work requirement and a significant Equus staff turnover rate
̶ TWC average kids served per day target totals 7,025 and actual enrollment totaled 


5,744 (81.8% of target)
̶ Low expenditures are a statewide issue; TWC considering a COVID allocation 


adjustment for all Boards


Covid-19 Related Child Care Expenditures
̶ Expenditures totaled $4.5 million, 35.6% or $1.2 million ahead of target
̶ All expenditures are associated with the 25% supplemental payments
̶ Were initially planned to end in December 2020, has been extended to July 2021


Workforce Center Subrecipient







WIOA
• Expenditures at target levels for the overall 


WIOA grants (Adult, Dislocated, Youth)
• The Youth grant specifically is behind 


expenditures targets by 18.6% or $265,000
• It has been challenging to register youth to 


participate in on-site work experience 
programs primarily due to the COVID 
situation.


• Equus has developed an outreach and 
enrollment plan


Workforce Center Contractor







TANF\SNAP
• Expenditures behind target by 


approximately 14.6% or $393,000
• TWC removed the participation 


requirements
• Could be challenging to expend these 


funds prior to the grant end dates


Workforce Center Contractor







Questions?


This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Employment and Training
Administration. The product was created by the recipient and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S.
Department of Labor. The Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, or assurances of any kind, express
or implied, with respect to such information, including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to,
accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership.
This product is copyrighted by the institution that created it.





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13






Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 
P.O. Box 5888 | Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 | Fax: 817-640-6480 
E-mail: workforce@dfwjobs.com 


In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 
 


 


 
Board Policy Issuance 


 
 
 


Policy Name: 
 
Code of Conduct 


Description: 
Code of Conduct Procedures for Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas Workforce 
Centers, Mobile Workforce Unit(s), and Other 
Operational Locations 


Date of Approval:  
May 25, 2021 


Revision History:  
1st Revision 


Effective Date:  
May 25, 2021 


Scheduled for Review:  
May 25, 2026 


Policy Topic:  
Governance and Administration 


Administering Department:  
Compliance and Continuous Improvement 


 
                
 
DEFINITIONS: N/A 
 
 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) is committed to providing quality, 
professional services in a clean, safe, and comfortable environment free from disruptions. 
This policy has been formulated to ensure all can work in an environment that fosters 
mutual  respect and opportunities to achieve the highest impact. The use of WSNCT 
facilities and resources, as well as working with our staff, implies acceptance of Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas’ Code of Conduct. The standards of this Code of 
Conduct extend to virtual, digital, written, or telephonic communications. 
 
Conduct detrimental to the programs, staff, customers, or general public will not be 
tolerated. Customers not conducting business related to job search or directly related 
activities or failing to conduct themselves within the standards outlined in this Code of 
Conduct, will be subject to punitive action up to and including the filing of criminal charges. 
All members of the public, no matter the type of relationship with WSNCT are expected to 
be polite and maintain conduct aligned with this policy. This policy is intended to provide 
broad guidance regarding prohibited conduct and does not supersede the reasonable 
discretion of the management of the Workforce Center, Child Care Services, Mobile 
Workforce Unit, or other workforce activity locations. The behaviors cited below are 
expressly forbidden and not considered acceptable. The following list is not an all-
inclusive list: 


• Use of obscene and/or abusive language, 


POLICY NUMBER: 
       GA07-201609-01 


 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


• Intimidation, threatening behavior, verbal abuse or harassment 
towards staff, other customers, or the general public, 


• Disruption of operations/creating a public disturbance, 
• Loitering in the facility/not conducting official business, 
• Use of the facility and resources for non-job search related activities, 
• Recklessness or disorderly conduct, 
• Acts of vandalism, theft, defacing and/or destruction of property, 


equipment, materials, including technology, etc., 
• Unlawful possession of firearms or weapons, illegal drugs, hazardous 


materials, or other unlawful items/substances, 
• Behavior that threatens to cause or does cause bodily harm to a third 


party, including staff, other customers, or the general public, 
• Obstruction or attempts to obstruct service delivery, including falsification of 


Workforce Center records, or providing false      information/identification, 
• Remaining in the facility after closing or when requested to leave, 
• Entering non-public areas of the facility, except when accompanied by staff 


or with proper permission, and/or 
• Use of the restrooms for bathing, shampooing, shaving, or washing clothes. 


 
Violations of the Code of Conduct, are prohibited and may result in punitive action up 
to and including the filing of criminal charges. 
 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
Subrecipient Management must ensure appropriate staff receives a copy of this policy 
and implement accordingly. The Code of Conduct must be publicly displayed in visible 
areas inside each Workforce Center, Mobile Workforce Unit(s), and locations where 
customers receive services or interact with staff, including via written or electronic 
methods. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
 
N/A 
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 


 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Approved by:      Reviewed by: 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 
 
  


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager - Compliance 
and Continuous Improvement 


         



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com



		600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three






BCY21- February 2021 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR) Overview


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program.


Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the


hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. Workforce Solutions for


North Central Texas services are provided based on eligibility.







BCY21 – February 2021


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)


“Meeting Performance (MP)” or “Positive Performance (+P)” within 16 of 20


formally contracted performance measures for which we have all available data:


Performance Status # of Measures


Positive Performance (+P) 6


Meeting Performance (MP) 10


Negative Performance (-P) 4







REEMPLOYMENT & EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET
CURRENT 


PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 


CURRENT TARGET
NUMERATOR                     


(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR                     
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 


STATUS


PERFORMANCE 


CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Claimants Reemployed within 
10 Weeks


41.60% N/A N/A - - N/A N/A


# of Employers Receiving 
Workforce Assistance


6,806


(3,700 – Current 
Target)


4,276 115.57% - - +P -


BCY21 – February 2021


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







PROGRAM PARTICIPATION MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET
CURRENT 


PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 


CURRENT TARGET
NUMERATOR                     


(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR                     
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 


STATUS


PERFORMANCE 


CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Avg # Children Served Per Day 
– (Combined)


7,025 5,733 81.61% 613,484 107 -P -12


BCY21 – February 2021


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







WIOA OUTCOME MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET
CURRENT 


PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 


CURRENT TARGET
NUMERATOR                     


(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR                     
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 


STATUS


PERFORMANCE 


CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


65.60% 60.55% 92.30% 6,160 10,173 -P 0.03%


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


81.70% 84.10% 144 7,929 9,428 MP 0.03%


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 69.40% 67.92% 97.87% 144 212 MP 0.00%


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 68.40% 68.00% 99.42% 104 153 MP -0.90%


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 68.30% 70.90% 103.81% 122 172 MP -0.70%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult $5,000 $   5,932.33 118.65% N/A 104 +P $0 


Credential Rate – Adult 65.40% 72.50% 110.86% 58 80 MP 3.50%


Measurable Skills Gains - Adult 58.00% 36.20% 62.41% 75 207 -P N/A


Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 75.30% 68.90% 91.50% 93 135 MP 0.80%


BCY21 – February 2021 


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







WIOA OUTCOME MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET
CURRENT 


PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 


CURRENT TARGET
NUMERATOR                     


(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR                     
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 


STATUS


PERFORMANCE 


CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 79.20% 76.70% 96.84% 112 146 MP -0.10%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW $8,100 $   9,654.24 119.19% N/A 93 +P $           (33.54)


Credential Rate – DW 71.20% 76.50% 107.44% 62 81 MP 0.00%


Measurable Skills Gains - DW 58.00% 40.70% 70.17% 105 258 -P N/A


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 66.40% 69.80% 105.12% 113 162 MP 0.70%


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 70.80% 82.40% 116.38% 117 142 +P 0.00%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth $3,200 $   3,697.76 115.55% N/A 106 +P N/A


Credential Rate – Youth 43.80% 47.10% 107.53% 16 34 MP 9.30%


Measurable Skills Gains - Youth 50.00% 50.80% 101.60% 32 63 MP N/A


BCY21 – February 2021 


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







North Central is currently ranked 17th of 28 Boards and 3rd of 7 Large Boards.


BOARD


AVERAGE RANK PER 


FORMALLY CONTRACTED 


PERFORMANCE MEASURE


ALL BOARDS RANK
LARGE BOARDS 


RANK


Alamo 15.15 18 4


Borderplex 15.70 21 5


Dallas County 14.70 15 2


Gulf Coast 18.90 27 7


Lower Rio Grande 16.40 24 6


North Central Texas 14.95 17 3


Tarrant County 14.10 13 1


BCY21 – February 2021


Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







QUESTIONS








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


 
Recommendation for the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand 


Industries Lists 
 
Background: 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas’ Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-
Demand Industries Lists encompass a regional economic analyses of Workforce Solutions for North 
Central Texas’ 14-county region. The three lists identify areas of considerable impact to the economy 
that are critical to supporting the region’s competitiveness. 
 
The Target Occupations are high-growth and high-demand careers that lead to self-sufficiency. The 
list is based on economic indicators and local wisdom that reflect the labor market needs of our 
employer community. Similarly, the In-Demand Occupations and In-Demand Industries account for 
areas that are substantial within our region due to their size and growth but do not account for self-
sufficiency wage.  
 
The three lists shall: 
 
• Guide the Board’s strategic investments 
• Influence the investments of our regional workforce ecosystem partners 
 
The Target Occupations List, additionally, shall: 
 
• Inform our career seekers’ decisions regarding their careers and guide them into aptitude- 
appropriate and economically relevant occupational training 
 
Information: 
 
The current Development and Maintenance policy only includes the structure for the analysis of the 
Target Occupations List (TOL). In accordance with Texas Workforce Commission’s most up-do-
date policy language, the proposed policy revision:  
 
• Establishes the criteria for the In-Demand Occupations and In-Demand Industries Lists 
• Changes the formal review period from biannual to annual  
 
Recommendation: 
The Strategic Leadership Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand 
Industries Lists Policy.  


 
Approval Date:  May 25, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-
Demand Industries Lists.  
 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS 
Bylaws Amendment 


 
Background: 
 
Texas Government Code §2308.261 prescribes the official role of the governor in the Local Workforce 
Development Board (Board) certification process. It states that the governor shall, certify a Board on 
determining that the Board’s composition is consistent with applicable federal and state requirements 
and meets established state criteria. Additionally, the governor shall, once every two years, certify 
one Board for each local workforce development area in the state. This Subsequent Certification is 
to ensure that all Boards are composed according to state and federal law and are meeting all other 
requirements. The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) uses the following requirements to conduct 
Board review: 


• Board composition must be consistent with Texas Government Code §2308.256 and 40 
TAC §801.1(g) 


• Diversity requirements 
• Industry representation 
• Bylaws 
• Board–Chief Elected Official (CEO) Partnership Agreement 
• Board must show whether it has ensured services that will be delivered in a manner allowing 


the Board to meet local measures 
• Board must show whether it has developed fiscal policies and procedures to ensure that 


financial controls are in place 
 


Information: 
 
In its Subsequent Certification review of the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board, 
TWC has recommended that the bylaws be revised to indicate the size of the Workforce Board.  
TWC’s CEO Membership Guide identifies the minimum board size as 25.  The authority to set the 
maximum board size belongs to the Chief Elected Officials (CEOs) and is defined in the CEO 
Agreement as 38.   
 
Following discussion with the Executive Committee, the bylaws have been drafted to include the 
following revisions: 


• The addition of Article 3, Section 3 to indicate the size of the board will be no less than 25 
and no more than 38 members, and 


• The revision of Article 8, Section 1 removing the requirement for a two-meeting process to 
amend the bylaws.    


 
Based on the current process to amend the bylaws, the motion to approve the amended bylaws will 
be included on the July Board meeting agenda. 
  
Attachment: Proposed Bylaws Revision 
 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 


Recommendation for Individual Training Accounts – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act Funding for Training programs - Revision 


 
Background: 
 
The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) issued new guidance on January 22, 2021 to provide 
Boards with updated requirements on using Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) for training providers 
and programs located outside of Texas.  Boards choosing to issue ITAs for training programs located 
outside of Texas must include the additional requirements identified in WD Letter 12-19, Change 1.  
The additional requirements are: 
 


• The training program must provide performance information in a manner determined by 
TWC that demonstrates that the program meets or exceeds any minimum performance 
standards established by TWC’s three-member Commission (Commission). 


• The training program must have an existing partnership with a local employer in the 
workforce area, as documented by a letter of support or the existence of an employer 
advisory committee. 


• The training program must be approved by TWC’s executive director before funding 
through an ITA. 


• The training provider must be appropriately licensed in accordance with TWC Chapter 
840 WIOA Eligible Training Providers rule §840.10. 


In addition to the above requirements, Boards must submit additional material as well as 
documentation of compliance with the requirements of Texas Education Code Chapter 132.  


Information: 
 
The current Board policy has been revised to limit ITAs to training providers and programs included 
on the statewide Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) in Texas.  The list of training programs and 
providers located within the state of Texas is sufficient to meet the training needs within the WSNCT 
board area. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the Individual Training Accounts – Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act Funding for Training Programs Policy.  


 
Approval Date:  May 25, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Individual Training Accounts – Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act Funding for Training Programs 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 


Recommendation for Priority of Services for Veterans, Qualified Spouses & Foster Youth - 
Revision 


 
Background: 
 
The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) issued new guidance on January 22, 2021 to clarify 
information on applying priority of service for eligible veterans.  The priority of service order for 
veterans and foster youth has not changed; however, the new language in WD Letter 01-21 has been 
incorporated to align with current guidance.   
 
Information: 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) affords priority of services to veterans, 
qualified spouses, and foster youth.  Priority of service applies to all workforce service programs 
funded in whole or in part by the US Department of labor Employment and Training Administration or 
state funds.  Priority of service means the right of eligible individuals to take precedence over 
noneligible individuals in obtaining workforce services.  Taking precedence can mean that: 


• eligible individuals receive access to workforce services before noneligible individuals; or 
• if workforce services are limited, eligible individuals receive access to workforce services 


instead of noneligible individuals. 
 
Noneligible individuals currently receiving workforce services will not be displaced to provide priority 
of service to an eligible individual. 
 
Workforce Centers must allow eligible individuals to self-identify as veterans and foster youth at the 
point of entry via the Greeter system sign-in.  Additionally, Workforce Center staff must ensure eligible 
individuals are: 


• informed of entitlement to priority of service and the full array of employment, training, and 
placement services available under priority of service and 


• any applicable eligibility requirements for those programs and services 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified Spouses & Foster Youth 
Policy. 


 
Approval Date:  May 25, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified Spouses & Foster 
Youth 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 


Recommendation for WIOA Adult Service Priority for individualized Career & Training 
Services - Revision 


 
Background: 
 
The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) issued new guidance on January 22, 2021 to clarify 
information on applying priority of service for eligible veterans.  The priority of service order for 
veterans and foster youth has not changed; however, the new language in WD Letter 01-21 has been 
incorporated to align with current guidance.   
 
Information: 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) affords priority of services to veterans, 
qualified spouses, and foster youth.  Priority of service applies to all workforce service programs 
funded in whole or in part by the US Department of labor Employment and Training Administration or 
state funds.   
 
Priority for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Individualized Career and Training 
Services must be given on a priority basis, regardless of funding levels, in the following order, to: 
 


1. Eligible veterans and eligible spouses, who are also recipients of public assistance, low 
income, or basic skills deficient. 


2. Non-covered persons (individuals who are not veterans or eligible spouses) who are also 
recipients of public assistance, low income or basic skills deficient as follows: 


a. Foster youth and former foster youth, as defined in WD Letter 43-11, Change 2, as 
required by Texas Family Code §264.121. 


b. Non-foster youth 
3. All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses. 
4. Priority populations established by the governor as follows: 


a. All other foster youth and former foster youth, as required by Texas Labor Code 
§264.121. 


5. Non-covered individuals outside of the groups given priority under WIOA. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the WIOA Adult-Service Priority for Individualized Career & Training 
Services Policy.  


 
Approval Date:  May 25, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on WIOA Adult-Service Priority for Individualized Career & 
Training Services  
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 


Recommendation for Workforce Board Code of Conduct Policy Revision 
 
Background: 
 
The Code of Conduct provides guidance for all participants, stakeholders, and members of the 
public working with, or using the services of Workforce Solution for North Central Texas (WSNCT). 
This policy outlines those behaviors and activities that are not conducive to a safe, professional, 
and effective work environment.  While not inclusive of every possible behavior or circumstance, the 
policy provides clear guidance and provides numerous examples of unacceptable behavior, and the 
potential consequences of that behavior. 
 
Information: 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) is committed to providing quality, 
professional services in a clean, safe, and comfortable environment free from disruptions. 
This policy has been formulated to ensure all can work in an environment that fosters mutual  
respect and opportunities to achieve the highest impact. The use of WSNCT facilities and 
resources, as well as working with our staff, implies acceptance of Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas’ Code of Conduct. The standards of this Code of Conduct extend to 
virtual, digital, written, or telephonic communications. 
 
Conduct detrimental to the programs, staff, customers, or general public will not be tolerated. 
Customers not conducting business related to job search or directly related activities or failing 
to conduct themselves within the standards outlined in this Code of Conduct, will be subject to 
punitive action up to and including the filing of criminal charges. All members of the public, no 
matter the type of relationship with WSNCT are expected to be polite and maintain conduct 
aligned with this policy. This policy is intended to provide broad guidance regarding prohibited 
conduct and does not supersede the reasonable discretion of the management of the 
Workforce Center, Child Care Services, Mobile Workforce Unit, or other workforce activity 
locations. The behaviors cited below are expressly forbidden and not considered acceptable. 
The following list is not an all-inclusive list: 


• Use of obscene and/or abusive language, 
• Intimidation, threatening behavior, verbal abuse or harassment towards 


staff, other customers, or the general public, 
• Disruption of operations/creating a public disturbance, 
• Loitering in the facility/not conducting official business, 
• Use of the facility and resources for non-job search related activities, 
• Recklessness or disorderly conduct, 
• Acts of vandalism, theft, defacing and/or destruction of property, equipment, 


materials, including technology, etc., 
• Unlawful possession of firearms or weapons, illegal drugs, hazardous 


materials, or other unlawful items/substances, 
• Behavior that threatens to cause or does cause bodily harm to a third 


party, including staff, other customers, or the general public, 







 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 
 
 


• Obstruction or attempts to obstruct service delivery, including falsification of Workforce 
Center records, or providing false      information/identification, 


• Remaining in the facility after closing or when requested to leave, 
• Entering non-public areas of the facility, except when accompanied by staff or 


with proper permission, and/or 
• Use of the restrooms for bathing, shampooing, shaving, or washing clothes. 


 
Violations of the Code of Conduct are prohibited and may result in punitive action up to 
and including the  filing of criminal charges. 
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends approval of the Code of Conduct Policy by 
the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board.  


 
Approval Date: May 25, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on the Code of Conduct 








 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING 
 


 
 


Meeting Minutes  
February 24, 2021 
9:00 am-11:00 am 
Zoom Meeting 


Videoconference 
 
 


BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 


BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT: 
 


 
 


 
CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS MEMBERS PRESENT: 


Judge Chambers Judge Little 
Judge Campos  


 
 
Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chairman Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 
Roger Harris called the meeting to order at 9:09 am    
 
1) Public Comment 
At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may comment 
on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your name, city of 
residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximum three (3) minutes is 
permitted per speaker. At the conclusion of this opportunity, the public telephone line will be 
muted for the duration of the meeting. 
 
2) Workforce Board Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 


Aaron Thibault Barbara Batista 
Bindu Adlakha Carlton Tidwell 
Chip Evans David Bristol 
Gae Goodwin Gary Henderson *late- agenda item 2 
Jacqueline Womble *late agenda item 2 Jason Gomez 
Jenny Morris John Rattan 
Kenny Weldon Leisa House 
Meera Ananthaswamy Mickey Hillock 
Roger Harris 
 


Rolanda Macharia 
Roselyn Lane Shae Hopkins 
Bill King Tony Curry 


 


Kristin Grammar Mike Hinojosa 
Rhodie Rawls Robert Hill 


 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


 
John Rattan made a motion to approve the minutes. Carlton Tidwell seconded the motion. None 
apposed, and the motion was passed.  


 
b) Strategic Leadership Committee Report- Kenny Weldon 


Kenny Weldon briefly discussed the previous Strategic Leadership Committee Meeting 
that was held on January 19, 2021. In that meeting the committee reviewed the 2016-
2020 Strategic Plan Final Report which is included in the Board packet. Over the last 
year, the committee has tried to align the Strategic Plan and Local Plan as far as the 
cycle is concerned. They have also launched significant efforts to look at board priorities. 
The three key priorities determined by the board were Child Care Quality, Career 
Exploration and Community Partnerships. The committee has also had initial 
discussions on partner engagement opportunities related to a local Tri-Agency effort, 
including the exploration of partnership opportunities with Tarleton State University, who 
is also going through their strategic planning effort.  


c) Oversight & Accountability Committee Report – Carlton Tidwell 
Carlton Tidwell briefly discussed the previous Oversight & Accountability Meeting that 
was held on January 26, 2021. In that meeting, the Weatherford Lease Amendment was 
reviewed by the committee. The lease was sent to the NCTCOG Board for approval.  


d) Executive Committee Report – Roger Harris 
Roger Harris informed the board and Chief Elected Officials of the great work in 
interactions between the committee’s and the board. In the previous Executive 
Committee Meeting held on February 22, 2021, the committee reviewed the WSNCT 
Board Budget Approval Policy. This policy was initiated from a discussion that started in 
the Oversight & Accountability meeting and was then brought forward to the Executive 
Committee to review and finally the board for approval.  
 


The Executive Committee recommends approval of the WSNCT Board Budget Approval Policy 
by the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board. Roselyn Lane seconded the motion. 
22 board members approved the recommendation, none opposed, and the motion was passed.  


 
e) In Demand Industries, In Demand Occupations and Target Occupations List Updates 


Cristina Medina made the board aware of a change in how the In Demand Industries, In 
Demand Occupations list and Target Occupations List have been presented this year to 
the board. While the lists are included in the Local Plan, to be voted on shortly, the 
Target Occupations List is normally presented to the board as a standalone item.  
Therefore, the lists are being presented separate from the Local Plan to draw attention 
to the changes. Daniela Ramirez provided an overview of the 2021 In Demand 
Industries, In Demand Occupations and Target Occupations lists. 
 


Kenny Weldon made a motion that the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board 
approve the 2021Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, In-Demand Industries Lists. 
Aaron Thibault seconded the motion. 22 board members approved the recommendation, none 
opposed, and the motion was passed. 


 
f) 2021-2024 Local Plan  


Cristina Medina reviewed the Local Plan with the board. The Local Plan was out for 
public comment January 22nd though February 8th. We did receive some feedback during 
that time, which was mainly complimentary. Most comments came from the community 
colleges appreciating the way that the information was provided. The WIOA requires that 
the workforce boards develop a comprehensive 4-year plan that analyzes the local 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


workforce development area which lays out the strategies and priorities of each board. 
This Local Plan speaks to how we intend to carry out compliance with those 
requirements.  
 


Roselyn Lane made a motion that the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board 
approve the 2021-2024 Local Plan. Gae Goodwin seconded the motion. 22 board members 
approved the recommendation, none opposed, and the motion was passed. 


 
g) NCTCOG Independent Audit 


Randy Richardson reviewed the NCTCOG Independent Audit with the board. 
  
3) Executive Director’s Report 


a) Staff Announcements  
David Setzer recognized Samuel Horstman, our new Communications Specialist. Sam 
joined the team in mid-November. David also recognized Kristin Castillo, Lachelle 
Brooks and Ada Gonzalez for all three completing their master’s degrees.  


b) Board Staff Years of Service Recognition 
David recognized Dana Buckholt for 30 years of service, David Setzer for 15 years of 
service, Michael Nicholas for 15 years of service, Stephanie Roberts for 10 years of 
service and Phyllis Stewart for 5 years of service. 


 
4) Announcement of Executive Session 
 
5) Action as a Result of Executive Session 


No action was taken. 
 
6) Other Business 
 
7) Adjourn 


Roger Harris adjourned the meeting at 10:41 am. 





		Meeting Minutes

		February 24, 2021

		BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

		BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:








  PAGE | 1 


MARCH 2021 


STRATEGIC PLAN (TITLE TBD) 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


UNFORMATTED DRAFT - NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION 
 







  UNFORMATTED DRAFT – NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION 


  PAGE | i 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
TIP would like to thank the following individuals and organizations for their participation in this planning process. 


Roger Harris 
Private Sector, Collin County 


David Bristol 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Bindu Adlakha 
Public Employment Services, TWC 


Meera Ananthaswamy 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Chip Evans 
Literacy Council, At Large 


Jason Gomez 
Secondary Education, Kaufman County 


Gae Goodwin 
Private Sector, Denton 


Gary Henderson 
Private Sector, Denton 


Robert Hill 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Mickey Hillock 
Private Sector, Navarro County 


Mike Hinojosa 
Organized Labor, At Large 


Shea Hopkins 
Private Sector, Hood County 


Leisa House 
TWS – Vocational Rehabilitation Services, At Large 


Lisa Huffaker 
Community-Based Organization, Palo Pinto County 


William King, Ph.D. 
Education, Collin County 


Roselyn Lane 
Private Sector, Hunt County 


Rolanda Macharia 
Private Sector, Collin County 


John Rattan 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Rhodie Rawls 
Community-Based Organization, Ellis County 


David K. Setzer 
Executive Director 


Aaron Thibault 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Carlton Tidwell 
Private Sector, Kaufman County 


Kenny Weldon 
Community-Based Organization, Erath County 


Jacqueline Womble 
Health and Human Services, At Large 


Cristina Medina 
Sr. Program Manager, Policy, Planning & Public Affairs 


Anabel Castillo-Soto 
Strategic Initiatives Manager 


 


 
TIP STRATEGIES, INC., is a privately held economic 
development consulting firm with offices in Austin 
and Seattle. TIP is committed to providing quality 
solutions for public sector and private sector clients. 
Established in 1995, the firm's primary focus is 
economic development strategic planning. 


CONTACT 
TIP Strategies 
2905 San Gabriel Street, Suite 309, Austin, TX 78705 
PH: 512-343-9113 
www.tipstrategies.com 


CONSULTING TEAM 
Tom Stellman, CEO and Founder 
Jaclyn Le, Consultant  
Meredith Eberle, Designer 


 







  UNFORMATTED DRAFT – NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION 


  PAGE | ii 


CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION..................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW ............................................................................................................................................... 2 
CORE FUNCTIONS ................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
PRIORITY 1. CHILDCARE QUALITY ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
PRIORITY 2. CAREER EXPLORATION ...................................................................................................................................... 6 
PRIORITY 3. COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS ............................................................................................................................. 8 
STRATEGIC INDICATORS ..................................................................................................................................................... 11 
IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING ........................................................................................................................ 13 
 







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 1 


INTRODUCTION 
The future of work is changing. Automation and new technologies are restructuring entire industries. Workers 
must master new skills at a rapid pace. Education and workforce training systems must prepare students for a 
changing economy. The COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated these trends while also exacerbating the existing 
racial fault lines in our society and economy.  


Workforce development organizations are operating in a new environment in which they are expected to be more 
strategic, agile, and collaborative than ever before. High-performing workforce boards are becoming more 
ambitious in their pursuit of broader community and economic goals. They are expanding their services, tools, 
and partnerships to serve more workers and employers while also driving towards large-scale economic 
prosperity and opportunity in their service areas. 


Within this context, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) chose to develop a new strategic plan 
designed to elevate its impact and create solutions for complex economic and workforce challenges. This plan 
will guide programs, services, and partnerships delivered in the 14-county North Central Texas Workforce 
Development area so that the region remains competitive and workers have access to economic opportunities.  


WSNCT is in a prime position to influence change at scale. The organization not only provides direct services to 
jobseekers but also acts as a leader in the regional workforce ecosystem. To achieve its goals, WSNCT must 
continue to evolve and expand its role as a thought leader, convener, and catalyst for meaningful changes in the 
region’s workforce and economy. 


In 2020, TIP Strategies (TIP) was engaged by WSNCT to develop a five-year strategic plan that will help the 
organization expand its impact and prepare for the future. The priorities in this plan were identified by board 
members in 2020 as core issues for the economic success and advancement of workers. Through a series of 
workshops with the board and staff, the strategies in this plan were identified as ways for WSNCT to continue to 
meet its mission while also evolving its core functions and the increasing the scale of its impact.  


WSNCT should not view this strategic plan as a static document, but as one that invites revisions and 
amendments as conditions change. Now, more than ever, stakeholders should take a dynamic approach to 
implementation—one that revisits this plan on a regular basis to measure progress and to reprioritize strategies 
and actions as needed. 


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 2 


ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW 
The purpose of a strategic plan is to provide a call to action and roadmap for an organization to achieve its 
mission and goals. An effective strategic plan also communicates an organization’s values and priorities to the 
world. Realizing WSNCT’s mission to advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth and 
opportunity will require the organization to work in new and innovative ways.  


WSNCT board members identified three priorities that build on the organization’s vision and mission while 
focusing resources on areas where WSNCT is best positioned to make an impact in the region. While these 
priorities will chart a new path for WSNCT, the organization should continue to provide high-quality services that 
meet community needs and create a skilled workforce prepared for the future. 


VISION MISSION 


WSNCT is the recognized leader in building  
tomorrow’s workforce. 


To advance business-driven solutions that promote 
economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled workforce. 


VALUES 
 


 
 


INCLUSION 
Leverage our  


collective genius. 


 


 
 


COMMUNITY 
We’re in this together. 


 


 
 


LEADERSHIP 
Courage to shape  


a better future. 


 


 
 


TRUST 
Operate with integrity  


and respect. 


PRIORITY AREAS 
 


 
 


CHILDCARE QUALITY 


 


 
 


CAREER EXPLORATION 


 


 
 


COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 3 


CORE FUNCTIONS 
The bulk of this strategic plan focuses on three goal areas: childcare quality, career exploration, and community 
partnerships. Later sections of this plan include specific purposes, measures, and actions associated with those 
three goals; however, it is important to note that WSNCT, like other workforce boards, has several core functions 
that allow the organization to add value to the region’s workforce ecosystem.  


Five core functions guide WSNCT’s approach to workforce development. While focus is often placed on programs 
and services to workers, WSNCT can also play a leadership role in the workforce system through its research, 
marketing, partnerships, and advising functions.  


1. PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICE DELIVERY 


High-performing workforce boards operate and support programs that meet the needs of workers and 
businesses. Childcare, education, and workforce training programs are common programs and/or services 
provided by workforce boards, including WSNCT.  


2. RESEARCH AND DATA ANALYSIS 


Many workforce boards measure strategic outcomes related to community and economic outcomes to inform 
program, policy, and investment decisions. Increasing internal capacity to better understand, analyze, and 
communicate data is a core way for WSNCT to add value to the region’s workforce ecosystem.  


• Research focused on childcare quality, future of work trends, and high-demand occupations/industries were 
identified as priority topics. 


• While WSNCT should support research and data-driven decisions across all its goals, childcare quality is an 
area where WSNCT’s thought leadership can be transformative (Purpose 1.2 under Childcare Quality). 


3. MARKETING AND INFORMATION SHARING 


Workforce boards that can clearly communicate a vision, share information, and enhance awareness of workforce 
issues are more effective in reaching their goals. WSNCT board members and staff indicated a need to share 
information about its programs and services to a wider audience.  


• Conducting a brand audit would shed light on how WSNCT and its programs and services are perceived by 
key audiences and help set more targeted marketing goals.  


• WSNCT should better leverage its digital marketing channels by developing and sharing more information 
about research, programs, partner organizations, and other resources. 


4. CONVENING AND PARTNERSHIPS 


Cross-sector partnerships with industry and other partners are now a hallmark activity for high-performing 
workforce boards. WSNCT should expand sector-based partnerships and industry councils to better link 
education, workforce, and business goals. Because WSNCT operates at the intersection of many organizations, 
leveraging its convening power to establish connections and partnerships should be a core function. 


5. CONSULTING AND ADVISING 


WSNCT can leverage its expertise in education and workforce development to support other organizations in the 
region. Board members and staff can provide research, information, and other perspectives to inform the work of 
other organizations with complementary workforce goals. Furthermore, employers also look to WSNCT for its 
expertise in supporting workers and creating more equitable talent strategies for the region.  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 4 


PRIORITY 1. CHILDCARE QUALITY 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Improving the quality of childcare in the 14-county North Central Texas Workforce Development 
area is critical to preparing children for school and supporting their parents in their own learning 
and development. WSNCT believes that high-quality childcare leads to greater school readiness, 
long-term educational attainment, and two-generation economic prosperity. 


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
1.1. CHILDCARE COLLABORATIVE. Facilitate collaboration between businesses, early learning programs, and 


education institutions to harness collective impact and align efforts related to accessibility and 
affordability of high-quality childcare. 


1.1.1. Convene a childcare council with early learning programs, industry leaders, community colleges, 
and school districts to identify challenges and collaborative solutions for the region. 


• Host discussions with industry leaders to understand childcare issues that employers and 
workers are facing. 


• Use surveys, virtual discussions, and town halls to bring together employers and share 
information about childcare quality. 


• Examine available resources, funding, and incentives to encourage employers to expand 
childcare options for their employees. 


1.1.2. Partner with school districts and community colleges to strengthen the link between childcare, 
early learning, and long-term educational outcomes. 


• Support alignment of early childhood outcomes provided by early learning programs and 
school districts. 


1.2. FOUNDATIONAL RESEARCH. Expand research and data on the availability of childcare, where childcare 
deserts exist, and other childcare needs in the region. 


1.2.1. Gather information about areas in WSNCT’s region that have a disproportionate lack of early 
learning programs and options. 


• Children at Risk released a childcare desert and affordability map that could be a resource for 
WSNCT to better understand where there is a lack of high-quality childcare.  


• Supplement data with qualitative information gathered from employers, providers, and 
education partners that operate in WSNCT’s service area. 


1.2.2. Provide information about the talent pipeline for educators and early learning programs, including 
skills, credentials, salary, and benefits. 


• Work with community colleges and other workforce organizations to understand challenges 
and opportunities to elevate early childhood educators and early learning programs.  


• Share information with economic development organizations and employers to identify ways 
to increase support for professionals providing childcare in the region. 



https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredesertmap/





  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 5 


1.3. ELEVATING EDUCATORS. Promote and advocate for elevating the value of early childhood and childcare 
professionals and their importance to economic and educational outcomes. 


1.3.1. Increase the training, including apprenticeships and industry-recognized credentials, for early 
childhood educators and early learning programs. 


• Identify additional resources and incentives to support professional development and 
continuing education for early childhood and childcare professionals. 


• Explore financial incentives that support teachers, directors, and family early learning 
programs to pursue additional education and training while staying in their roles. [Example: 
North Carolina’s Childcare WAGE$ Project] 


1.3.2. Advocate for increased compensation and benefits for early childhood and childcare 
professionals to support their retention and advancement in the field. 


• Partner with regional and statewide education and workforce development organizations to 
promote policies that improve working conditions for teachers and early learning programs. 


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• PROVIDER QUALITY: 


• Percentage of early learning programs that are Texas Rising Star (TRS) Certified or NAEYC accredited 


• Number and percentage of providers by TRS certification levels 


• ACCESS AND AVAILABILITY (DISAGGREGATE BY RACE AND ETHNICITY):  


• Average cost of childcare compared to median income 


• Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as childcare deserts 


• Percentage of zip codes that are TRS deserts 


• EDUCATOR CREDENTIALS AND COMPENSATION (DISAGGREGATE BY RACE AND ETHNICITY): 


• Number and percentage of childcare workers with a relevant postsecondary degree or industry credential 


• Percentage of childcare and early childhood occupations that pay a living wage 


  



https://earlylearningchallenge.nc.gov/wage#:%7E:text=The%20Child%20Care%20WAGE%24%C2%AE,early%20care%20and%20education%20program.





  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 6 


PRIORITY 2. CAREER EXPLORATION 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Opportunities to broaden career awareness and exploration can better connect youth and adults 
to in-demand jobs as well as fulfill the needs of employers. WSNCT will support career 
exploration opportunities that equip workers with the skills and knowledge required for success 
in a rapidly changing and digitally driven economy. 


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
2.1. FUTURE OF WORK. Focus on jobs of the future and skill-based career development that will be required for 


success in a digitally driven economy. 


2.1.1. Convene employers, economic development organizations, and education partners to identify and 
focus efforts on a set of emerging industries and occupations.  


• Partner with regional workforce organizations in developing a regional initiative focused on 
the future of work.  


• Co-identify a limited set of industries, occupations, and/or skills that are vital to the region’s 
economy and future prosperity.  


2.1.2. Work with school districts and community colleges to identify core skills (e.g., digital literacy, 
coding, etc.) that support emerging industries and occupations; expand opportunities related to 
those skills. 


2.2. EXPLORATION PIPELINE. Create a comprehensive pipeline of exploration opportunities starting in early 
childhood and extending through postsecondary education. 


2.2.1. Showcase career exploration best practice opportunities across different age groups from early 
childhood through K-12 and postsecondary education to identify gaps and create a 
comprehensive pipeline. 


2.2.2. Engage employers in expanding participation in career exploration opportunities that increase in-
depth information and access to priority career pathways which will be defined based on 
employer input. 


2.2.3. Support education partners in creating career exploration content (e.g., digital tools, webinars, 
etc.) focused on target industries and occupations. 


2.3. TARGETED DUAL-GENERATION SUPPORT. Increase career exploration opportunities that involve both 
parents and students to better share information and support the whole family. 


2.3.1. Target career exploration activities toward underserved regions where parents and youth lack 
access and information about future career pathways. 


2.3.2. Provide consultations and advice to organizations that expand career exploration opportunities 
for students and their families. 


• Share information on apprenticeships, emerging industries, high-demand occupations, etc. 
with ISDs and other workforce organizations to expand parental and student awareness.  


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 7 


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• SKILL COMPETENCIES: 


• Number and growth rate of youth participation in training programs focused on core skills (e.g., coding, 
digital literacy, etc.) 


• APPRENTICESHIP TRAINING: 


• Participation in pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs aligned with targeted sectors and 
occupations 


• CREDENTIAL ATTAINMENT: 


• Number and growth rate of graduates with credential or degree related to a targeted sector or occupation 


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 8 


PRIORITY 3. COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Achieving ambitious workforce and economic goals will require cross-sector partnerships that 
create innovative solutions for workers and break down silos between organizations. WSNCT 
will cultivate partnerships at both strategic and operational levels to build awareness of 
programs, share information, and leverage public and private resources to meet goals. 


TYPES OF PARTNERSHIPS 
High-performing workforce boards collaborate with a 
variety of organizations to maximize impact, leverage 
more resources, and measure success toward over-
arching community goals. There is a broad spectrum 
of ways for boards to collaborate with partners. To 
pursue ambitious community and economic goals, 
workforce boards will need to reimagine partnerships, 
working with both public and private sector 
organizations with complementary interests.  


WSNCT is accustomed to managing formal 
partnerships with service providers focused on 
programmatic priorities, such as childcare and career 
exploration. Such program partnerships are necessary 
for service delivery and fulfillment of requirements set 
by funders. Alternatively, strategic partnerships can 
further WSNCT’s mission and vision while supporting 
long-term priorities beyond service delivery. Table 1 
outlines major differences between strategic and 
program-focused partnerships.  


Developing more strategic partnerships as well as 
bolstering internal infrastructure to manage 
programmatic partnerships will be central to achieving the goals set forth by board members. Three focus areas 
for strategic partnerships, including economic development, racial equity and inclusion, and regional partnerships 
with other workforce organizations, were identified by board members and staff. Figure 1 (next page) provides an 
overview of WSNCT’s partnership focus areas. 


  


TABLE 1. PARTNERSHIP CHARACTERISTICS 


Programmatic Partnerships Strategic Partnerships 


► Focuses on program or 
service delivery  


► Facilitates programmatic or 
operational efficiency  


► Guided by short-term 
performance metrics  


► Fulfills requirements from 
federal or state funding 
sources 


► Governed by formal 
contracts or memorandums 
of understanding (MOU) 


► Provides workforce board 
with more direct influence 
and higher degree of control 


► Furthers organizational 
mission, vision, and values 


► Supports long-term 
relationship building and 
priorities 


► Draws on discretionary 
and/or coordinated 
resources 


► Does not require formal 
partnership structure (i.e., 
can be an informal 
collaboration) 


► Requires indirect influence 
and provides workforce 
board with less control 


Note: The characteristics shared are generalizations. Partnerships do not 
have to fulfill every characteristic to be labeled as programmatic or strategic. 
The information shared should be used to provide directional input, not be 
treated as a checklist of requirements.  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 9 


FIGURE 1. WSNCT PARTNERSHIP FOCUS AREAS 


STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM PARTNERSHIPS 


Economic Development Racial Equity and Inclusion Regional Workforce Boards Internal Infrastructure 


    


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
3.1. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. Partner with local and regional economic development organizations to better 


address the workforce needs of employers. 


3.1.1. Increase business retention and expansion (BRE) visits with economic development 
organizations and chambers of commerce. 


3.1.2. Convene economic development partners in the region to address shared workforce 
development challenges. 


3.1.3. Collaborate with economic development organizations to build on existing business surveys or 
create pulse surveys focused on common challenges, including childcare issues, facing 
employers. 


3.2. RACIAL EQUITY AND INCLUSION. Collaborate to build internal and external capacity to serve communities 
of color and eliminate racial inequities in workforce outcomes. 


3.2.1. Disaggregate workforce data by race, ethnicity, and gender to better understand economic and 
workforce challenges for diverse communities. 


3.2.2. Build internal staff capacity to serve diverse communities (e.g., equity training, defining equity 
and inclusion for WSNCT, etc.). 


3.2.3. Align affirmative outreach plans (AOP) under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) with other WSNCT equity and inclusion priorities.  


3.3. REGIONAL WORKFORCE BOARDS. Work with other workforce partners, including the Regional Workforce 
Leadership Council (RWLC), to share relevant data about industries, workforce needs, and programs. 


3.3.1. Create data sharing partnerships with other workforce organizations and workforce investment 
boards (WIBs) to better understand workforce needs across the DFW Metroplex and target 
services.  


3.3.2. Identify common challenges or regionwide opportunities to collaborate on critical workforce 
issues (e.g., preparing for the future of work, increasing quality jobs, supporting economic 
development priorities, etc.). 







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 10 


3.4. INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE. Develop internal infrastructure to manage formal programmatic 
partnerships with service providers.  


3.4.1. Establish a referral process, vetting mechanism, and success metrics for formal programmatic 
partnerships focused on service delivery. 


3.4.2. Create a centralized inventory of operational partnerships and utilize a customer relationship 
management (CRM) system in a consistent manner to maintain updated contact information.  


• Develop internal training opportunities so that all teams understand how to use the CRM.  


• Use reports from the CRM to inform decisions and set priorities of the WSNCT Leadership 
Team.  


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• RESOURCES: 


• Amount ($$) of resources leveraged toward partnership goals from 1) private sector, and 2) other public 
partners 


• PARTNERSHIP VALUE: 


• Partner satisfaction in achieving desired organizational goals 


• OTHER: 


• Other partnership outcomes should be jointly agreed upon by partners and focused on the outcomes 
desired from the collaborative work 


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 11 


STRATEGIC INDICATORS 
A critical activity of a high-performing workforce board is the ability to track and measure progress towards a 
series of strategic indicators. Strategic indicators are high-level community outcomes that the board seeks to 
influence. Tracking strategic indicators allows a workforce board to understand community challenges and make 
strategic decisions about how the organization can focus its efforts to best influence change. Moving the needle 
on these indicators will take combined efforts across multiple organizations.  


While WSNCT’s efforts alone are likely insufficient in changing these outcomes, the board should still track and 
focus on these indicators. Regular reporting on strategic indicators allows the board to understand the economic 
context and workforce challenges that the community faces. It provides a picture of the environment in which 
programs and services are delivered.  


Table 2 provides a list of indicators that is intended to focus WSNCT’s staff and board on high-level strategy and 
outcomes; however, staff will also need to identify programmatic metrics and operational outputs to track 
progress towards organizational goals. Strategic indicators are not meant to replace organizational metrics but 
instead focus the board’s attention on community outcomes that it seeks to influence. TIP strongly recommends 
that WSNCT disaggregate indicators as well as internal metrics by race and ethnicity where possible. 


TABLE 2. STRATEGIC INDICATORS 
PRIORITY ALIGNMENT LEGEND:  Childcare Quality  Career Exploration  Community Partnerships 


METRIC DESCRIPTION SOURCE PRIORITY 


Provider quality 


Percentage of providers that are Texas Rising Star (TRS) Certified or 
NAEYC accredited 


Texas Workforce Commission, 
in-house data collection  


Number and percentage of providers by TRS certification levels  Texas Workforce Commission, 
in-house data collection  


Childcare 
access and 
availability  


Average cost of childcare compared to median income United for ALICE1, MIT living 
wage calculator2  


Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as childcare deserts Children at Risk Texas 
Childcare Desert Map3  


Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as TRS deserts Children at Risk Texas 
Childcare Desert Map  


Educator 
credentials and 
compensation 


Number and percentage of childcare workers with a relevant 
postsecondary degree or industry credential 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Percentage of early childhood and childcare jobs that pay a living wage In-house data collection, 
MIT living wage calculator   


Skill 
competencies 


Number and growth rate of youth participation in training programs 
focused on core skills (e.g., coding, digital literacy, etc.) 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Apprenticeship 
training 


Participation in pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs aligned 
with targeted sectors and occupations 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Credential 
attainment 


Number and growth rate of graduates with credential or degree related to 
a targeted sector or occupation IPEDS, Emsi – NCES  


 
1 United for ALICE (Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed) research center: https://www.unitedforalice.org/texas.  
2 Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) living wage calculator: https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/48/locations.  
3 Children at Risk Texas childcare desert and affordability map: https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredeserts/.  



https://www.unitedforalice.org/texas

https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/48/locations

https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredeserts/





  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 12 


Resources Amount ($$) of resources leveraged toward partnership goals from 1) 
private sector, and 2) other public partners 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Partnership 
value Partner satisfaction in achieving desired organizational goals Survey  


Other Other partnership outcomes should be jointly agreed upon by partners and 
focused on the outcomes desired from the collaborative work TBD  


  







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 13 


IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING 
Strategic plans are living documents. Even in the best of times, economic and workforce contexts shift and evolve 
at a rapid pace. Developing a strategic plan in the middle of a pandemic will require even more flexibility and 
agility. Furthermore, many of the purposes and actions in this plan will push WSNCT to diversify its core functions 
and strengthen areas of work that have not been a big focus in the past. While the priorities and purposes in this 
plan are important markers for WSNCT’s work over the next five years, the implementation details will change.  


WSNCT staff should take a phased approach to implementation. Instead of laying out all the details for every 
priority and purpose, staff can build out detailed implementation plans by year. Table 3 offers a phased approach 
that will allow staff to take a gradual approach to implementing the priorities of this plan and making any 
necessary changes (e.g., resources) required for successful implementation. For example, year one of 
implementation should focus on bringing together new partners, identifying focus areas, and aligning internal 
infrastructure to support new priorities.  


TABLE 3. IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING      


PURPOSE / ACTION YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 
1.1  CHILDCARE COLLABORATIVE 


1.1.1  Convene a childcare council with early learning 
programs, industry leaders, community colleges, and school 
districts to identify challenges and collaborative solutions 
for the region 


     


1.1.2  Partner with school districts and community colleges 
to strengthen the link between childcare, early learning, and 
long-term educational outcomes 


     


1.2  FOUNDATIONAL RESEARCH 
1.2.1  Gather information about areas in WSNCT’s region 
that have a disproportionate lack of early learning programs 
and options 


     


1.2.2  Provide information about the talent pipeline for 
educators and early learning programs, including skills, 
credentials, salary, and benefits 


     


1.3  ELEVATING EDUCATORS 
1.3.1  Increase the training, including apprenticeships and 
industry-recognized credentials, for early childhood 
educators and early learning programs 


     


1.3.2  Advocate for increased compensation and benefits for 
early childhood and childcare professionals to support their 
retention and advancement in the field 


     


2.1  FUTURE OF WORK 
2.1.1  Convene employers, economic development 
organizations, and education partners to identify and focus 
efforts on a set of emerging industries and occupations 


     







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 14 


2.1.2  Work with school districts and community colleges to 
identify core skills (e.g., digital literacy, coding, etc.) that 
support emerging industries and occupations; expand 
opportunities related to those skills 


     


2.2  EXPLORATION PIPELINE 


2.2.1  Showcase career exploration best practice 
opportunities across different age groups from early 
childhood through K-12 and postsecondary education to 
identify gaps and create a comprehensive pipeline 


     


2.2.2  Engage employers in expanding participation in career 
exploration opportunities that increase in-depth information 
and access to priority career pathways which will be defined 
based on employer input 


     


2.2.3  Support education partners in creating career 
exploration content (e.g., digital tools, webinars, etc.) 
focused on target industries and occupations 


     


2.3  TARGETED DUAL-GENERATION SUPPORT 
2.3.1  Target career exploration activities toward 
underserved regions where parents and youth lack access 
and information about future career pathways 


     


2.3.2  Provide consultations and advice to organizations that 
expand career exploration opportunities for students and 
their families 


     


3.1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
3.1.1  Increase business retention and expansion (BRE) 
visits with economic development organizations and 
chambers of commerce 


     


3.1.2  Convene economic development partners in the region 
to address shared workforce development challenges      


3.1.3  Collaborate with economic development organizations 
to build on existing business surveys or create pulse surveys 
focused on common challenges, including childcare issues, 
facing employers 


     


3.2  RACIAL EQUITY AND INCLUSION 


3.2.1  Disaggregate workforce data by race, ethnicity, and 
gender to better understand economic and workforce 
challenges for diverse communities 


     


3.2.2  Build internal staff capacity to serve diverse 
communities (e.g., equity training, defining equity and 
inclusion for WSNCT, etc.) 


     


3.2.3  Align affirmative outreach plans (AOP) under the 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) with other 
WSNCT equity and inclusion priorities 


     







  DRAFT 


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 15 


3.3  REGIONAL WORKFORCE BOARDS 


3.3.1  Create data sharing partnerships with other workforce 
organizations and workforce investment boards (WIBs) to 
better understand workforce needs across the DFW 
Metroplex and target services 


     


3.3.2  Identify common challenges or region wide 
opportunities to collaborate on critical workforce issues 
(e.g., preparing for the future of work, increasing quality 
jobs, supporting economic development priorities, etc.) 


     


3.4  INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE      
3.4.1  Establish a referral process, vetting mechanism, and 
success metrics for formal programmatic partnerships 
focused on service delivery 


     


3.4.2  Create a centralized inventory of operational 
partnerships and utilize a customer relationship 
management (CRM) system in a consistent manner to 
maintain updated contact information 


     


 





		Introduction

		Organizational Overview

		Core Functions

		Priority 1. Childcare Quality

		Key Priority Statement

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome Indicators



		Priority 2. Career Exploration

		Key Priority Statement

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome   Indicators



		Priority 3. Community Partnerships

		Key Priority Statement

		Types of Partnerships

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome Indicators



		Strategic Indicators

		Implementation Timeline and Phasing





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



